
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: August 24, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
Regular City Council Meeting 

August 24, 2021, at 7:00 PM 
City Council Chambers 

231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer 
www.palmerak.org 

AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a. Resolution No. 21-029 AEPS Phase II FAA Grant R1
b. Resolution No. 21-031 TW November FAA Grant
c. Action Memorandum No. 21-048 Professional Legal Services 2021
d. Action Memorandum No. 21-049 Country Garden Farms LLC
e. Action Memorandum No. 21-050 HDL Contract Amendment TW N Design Project
f. Action Memorandum No. 21-051 HDL Contract Amendment AEPS Phase II R1

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings
a. July 27, 2021, Special Meeting
b. July 27, 2021, Regular Meeting

E. COMMUNICATION AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS

F. REPORTS
1. City Manager’s Report
2. Mayor’s Report
3. City Clerk’s Report
4. City Attorney’s Report

G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS

I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

J. NEW BUSINESS
1. Committee of the Whole: Presentation of the 2020 Financial Audit (note: action may be taken by the

council following the committee of the whole)
2. Resolution No. 21-030 Changes to Fee Schedule MTA Events Center
3. Resolution No. 21-032 Appropriating CSLFRFA ARPA Funds

K. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE

Mayor Edna B. DeVries 
Deputy Mayor Sabrena Combs 
Council Member Julie Berberich 
Council Member Richard W. Best 
Council Member Steve Carrington 
Council Member Brian Daniels 
Council Member Jill Valerius 

City Attorney Michael Gatti 
City Manager John Moosey 
Interim City Clerk Nichole Degner 

.......................................................Page  3
..........................................................Page 33

.................................Page 65
.........................................Page 87

.........Page 101
.............Page 111

..................................................................................Page 121
.................................................................................Page 125

..................................Page 129
...............................................Page 146

Page 1 of 162

http://www.palmerak.org/


__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: August 24, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 2 

L. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

M. EXECUTIVE SESSION
1. Subjects That Tend to Prejudice the Reputation and Character of Any Person – City Clerk Recruitment

(Note: All city clerk candidates may be discussed during the executive session. Personnel action
regarding the City Clerk Candidates may be taken following the executive session)

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS

O. ADJOURNMENT

Tentative Future Palmer City Council Meetings 

Meeting 
Date 

Meeting 
Type Time Notes 

Sep 14 Regular 7 pm 

Sep 28 Regular 7 pm 
Oct 11 Special 6 pm Election Certification 

Oct 12 Special 6 pm Budget 
Oct 12 Regular 7 pm 
Oct 26 Special 6 pm Budget 
Oct 26 Regular 7 pm 
Nov 9 Regular 7 pm 

Nov 23 Regular 7 pm 

Page 2 of 162



City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-029 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Resolution No. 21-029 

Subject:  Resolution 21-029:  Accepting and Appropriating a Grant from the Federal Aviation Administration at 
100% funding for the 2021 Avigation Easement Planning Study (Phase II) and Authorizing the City Manager to 
Execute the Grant when offered.    

Agenda of: August 24, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Frank J. Kelly, Airport Superintendent 
 

Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 395,482.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 395,482.00 
Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
Budgeted Line item(s): 

X Not budgeted 30-00-00-3388 FAA Grant AE Study Ph II; 30-03-10-7138 AE Study Phase
II Expenses

 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 3 of 162



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-029 Page 2 of 2 

 
Attachment(s): 

1. Resolution No. 21-029 AEPS Phase II FAA Grant 
2. FAA Grant Application SF424 AEPS II 
3. FAA Grant Assurances 
4. Letter to COP from Mike Brown, Mat-Su Borough Manager  

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Currently, the airport does not have adequate rights to control and maintain the entire approach surface to 
Runway 16.  In 1990, the threshold was displaced 500 feet from the runway end to provide an obstruction-free 
20:1 approach surface, due to trees located off the airport property on Mat-Su Borough-owned land.  Subsequent 
tree growth has resulted in trees in the approach surface to the displaced threshold.   
The Phase 1 Avigation Easement Planning Study (AEPS) updated the Aviation Activity Forecast, which determined 
the critical aircraft, and included a Runway Length Analysis, which determined the full runway length is justified.  
Alternatives were identified and a preferred alternative was selected in a government-to-government process 
between the City and the Borough.  The preferred alternative utilizes the full length of the existing runway and 
includes a properly sized and located avigation easement to give the airport rights to remove obstacles (trees) 
and to relocate the threshold to the runway end.  The initial phase I process also produced a letter of cooperation 
from the MSB Manger (attached).    
The proposed project includes preparing a planning study report and an Environmental Assessment (EA) for the 
avigation easement. The project includes project scoping coordination with agencies, a public engagement 
process, government to government consultation, a cultural resources inventory and field survey. The project also 
includes Section 106 consultation, wetlands delineation, and eagle nest survey. The project also includes an 
updated obstruction survey of the area of approach to runway 16, to allow for an accurate assessment of number 
of trees that will be impacted by mitigation. A Section 4(f)/6(f) process is included in the project to define the 
appropriate mitigation. Finally, an Environmental Assessment report will be prepared for the proposed action 
including alternatives considered, steps taken to minimize adverse impacts, and evaluation of the proposed 
mitigation. 
 
Due to the ongoing health pandemic, congress has continued 100% funding of all AIP grants for 2021.     
 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Resolution No. 21-029 
 
 

Page 4 of 162



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-029 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Resolution No. 21-029 
 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Accepting and Appropriating a Grant from the Federal 
Aviation Administration at 100% funding for the 2021 Avigation Easement Planning Study 
(Phase II) and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Grant when offered.    
 
WHEREAS, the City of Palmer maintains and operates the Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Palmer is obligated by grant assurances to run and maintain a safe airport and to fully 
utilize its infrastructure to the best of its abilities for all users; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Airport Sponsor Grant Assurances have been reviewed by the City of Palmer; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby to Accept and Appropriate a Grant 
from the Federal Aviation Administration at 100% funding for the 2021 Avigation Easement Planning Study 
(Phase II).     

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby to authorize the City 
Manager to execute the grant when offered. 
 
 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this ____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 

________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

 
_____________________________ 
Nichole Degner, Interim City Clerk 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: Airport Superintendent 

Date: August 24, 2021 
Action:  

Vote:  
Yes: No: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 5 of 162



Page 6 of 162



Page 7 of 162



Page 8 of 162



Page 9 of 162



Page 10 of 162



Page 11 of 162



Page 12 of 162



Page 13 of 162



Page 14 of 162



Page 15 of 162



Page 16 of 162



Page 17 of 162



Page 18 of 162



Page 19 of 162



Page 20 of 162



Page 21 of 162



Page 22 of 162



Page 23 of 162



Page 24 of 162



Page 25 of 162



Page 26 of 162



Page 27 of 162



Page 28 of 162



Page 29 of 162



Page 30 of 162



Page 31 of 162



Page 32 of 162



City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-031 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Resolution No. 21-031 

Subject:  Resolution 21-031:  Accepting and Appropriating a Grant from the Federal Aviation Administration at 
100% funding for the 2021 Taxiway (N) November Design Project and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute 
the Grant when offered.    

Agenda of: August 24, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Frank J. Kelly, Airport Superintendent 
 

Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 446,093.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
X Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 446,093.00 

Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
Budgeted Line item(s): 

X Not budgeted 30-00-00-3387 FAA Grant Revenue; 30-03-10-7137 Taxiway November
Design Project

 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 

City Clerk 

Page 33 of 162



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-031 Page 2 of 2 

 
Attachment(s): 

1. Resolution No. 21-031 Taxiway (N) November Design FAA Grant 
2. FAA Grant Application SF424 TW (N) November Design 
3. Figure 1 “Area of Potential Effect” 
4. FAA Grant Assurances 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Currently, the airport has leased out all lease lots available that are suitable for larger aircraft, additional lease 
lots are available south of Runway 10/28, but they are not accessible from the airfield. There are no parcels 
available for small aircraft on the north half of the airfield and if there were, these lots are too small and lack 
taxiway/taxilane access that will support DG II and larger aircraft.  
The City has potential tenants in line for leasing lots adjacent to Taxiway N. Taxiway N will provide access to 
these lots between Runway 10/28 and Taxiway A. 
North of Runway 10/28 tenants are restricted by weight limitations on Taxiway B which was constructed for small 
aircraft. The extension of Taxiway J to Taxiway A is the most cost-effective solution to remove the weight 
limitations for the hangar area north of Runway 10/28. 
 
Construction of Taxiway N will add impervious surface and therefore may contribute to additional storm water 
runoff.  Since runoff leaving the airport has contributed to localize flooding in recent years, and the Taxiway N 
project is anticipated to increase runoff, constructing a storm water management system is necessary to have a 
complete and viable taxiway project. 
 
The project will continue the ongoing efforts to remove tree obstructions from the Runway 10/28 transitional 
surface and utilize excess materials to re-grade the area between Taxiway A and Aprons A, B, C, and D to meet 
taxiway safety and object free area grading criteria. 
 
Due to the ongoing health pandemic, congress has continued 100% funding of all AIP grants for 2021.     
 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Resolution No. 21-031 
 
 

Page 34 of 162



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-031 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Resolution No. 21-031 
 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Accepting and Appropriating a Grant from the Federal 
Aviation Administration at 100% funding for the 2021 Taxiway (N) November Design Project and 
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Grant when offered.    
 
WHEREAS, the City of Palmer maintains and operates the Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport; and 

 
WHEREAS, an Airport Layout Plan has been updated by the City and approved by the FAA for the Warren “Bud” 
Woods Palmer Municipal Airport; and 
 
WHEREAS; the need for Taxiway (N) November is a priority to have new lease lots available with airside access 
with the FAA and the City of Palmer; and 
 
WHEREAS; the City of Palmer anticipates approval of FAA grant funds of up to $446,093.00 for the federal 
portion of the project; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Airport Sponsor Grant Assurances have been reviewed by the City of Palmer; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby to Accept and Appropriate a Grant 
from the Federal Aviation Administration at 100% funding for the 2021 Taxiway (N) November Design Project.     

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby to authorize the City 
Manager to execute the grant when offered. 
 
 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this ____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 

________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

 
_____________________________ 
Nichole Degner, Interim City Clerk 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: Airport Superintendent 

Date: August 24, 2021 
Action:  

Vote:  
Yes: No: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 35 of 162



Page 36 of 162



Page 37 of 162



Page 38 of 162



P
age 39 of 162



TWY J

TW
Y 

L

TWY B

TWY E

TWY D

TW
Y 

A
RWY 10/28

RW
Y 

16
/34

TWY C

TWY F

TWY G

TWY N

PREVIOUSLY CLEARED TREES IN 2019

FORESTRY
APRON

APRON D

APRON C

APRON B

APRON A

LARGE
AIRCRAFT
APRON

Warren "Bud" Woods Palmer Municipal Airport
Construct Taxiway N

Palmer, Alaska
March 2021

Figure 1   
Area of Potential Effect

Extend and Realign Taxiway J

Grade Taxilane Safety Areas
Storm Drain Upgrade

Remove Taxiway B

Construct Taxiway N

Runway 10/28 Tree Clearing

Area of Potential Effect

Page 40 of 162



Page 41 of 162



Page 42 of 162



Page 43 of 162



Page 44 of 162



Page 45 of 162



Page 46 of 162



Page 47 of 162



Page 48 of 162



Page 49 of 162



Page 50 of 162



Page 51 of 162



Page 52 of 162



Page 53 of 162



Page 54 of 162



Page 55 of 162



Page 56 of 162



Page 57 of 162



Page 58 of 162



Page 59 of 162



Page 60 of 162



Page 61 of 162



Page 62 of 162



Page 63 of 162



Page 64 of 162



City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-048 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Action Memorandum No. 21-048 

Subject:  Direct the City Manager to Issue the Request for Proposals for the Professional Legal Services 

Agenda of: August 24, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: John Moosey, City Manager 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 

This legislation (√): 
Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 
Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 
Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 

√ Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
Budgeted Line item(s): 
Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 65 of 162



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-048 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1. Request for Proposals 
2. Sample of Professional Services Agreement 
3. Preference Questionnaire  

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
On December 13, 2011, the City Council awarded a contract to Wohlforth, Brecht, Cartledge and Brookings. 
 
On January 28, 2014, City Council approved Action Memorandum No. 14-012 extending the contract to December 
31, 2014. 
 
On January 13, 2015, City Council approved Action Memorandum No. 15-001 extending the contract to December 
31, 2015. 
 
On October 27, 2015, City Council approved Action Memorandum No. 15-087 extending the agreement to 
December 31, 2016, and execute a Novation Agreement assigning it to Jermain Dunnagan & Owens, P.C. 
 
On December 13, 2016, City Council approved Action Memorandum No. 16-092 to execute a contract with Jermain 
Dunnagan & Owens, P.C  
 
On August 27, 2019, the City Council approved Action Memorandum No 19-064 to extend the contract for legal 
services with Jermain Dunnagan & Owens, P.C for one additional year to expire December 31, 2020. 
 
On August 25, 2020, the City Council approved Action Memorandum No. 20-056 to extend the contract for legal 
services with Jermain Dunnagan & Owens, P.C. for one additional year to expire December 31, 2021. 
 
Action Memorandum directs the City Manager to issue an RFP for legal services with the intent of awarding a 
contract prior to the December 31, 2021, deadline. 
 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:   
 
Approve Action Memorandum No. 21-048. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 66 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Request for Proposal 2021 General Counsel Legal Services Page 1 of 8 

 

CITY OF PALMER 
 

231 West Evergreen Avenue Palmer, 
Alaska 99645 

Phone (907) 745-3271 ● Fax (907) 745-0930 
www.palmerak.org 

 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 

The City of Palmer is soliciting proposals 
for General Counsel Legal Services. 

 
RELEASE DATE:  
AUGUST 30, 2021 

 
DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION AND OPENING DATE AND TIME: 

September 27, 2021 at 1:00 pm 
 

Use this page as the first page of the proposal. 
 
 

Response By: 
 
 
 
Attorney/Firm Name:  Contact Person:   

 
Address    

 
Telephone ( )  Fax ( )   

 
E-mail Address    

 
I have read, understand, and agree to all terms and conditions herein. 

 
Signed  Date:    

 
Print Name and Title      

  

Page 67 of 162

http://www.palmerak.org/


 
City of Palmer: Request for Proposal 2021 General Counsel Legal Services Page 2 of 8 

I. OVERVIEW OF REQUESTED SERVICES 
 

The City of Palmer (city), a first-class, home-rule municipality, population approximately 6,000,  is 
seeking proposals for general counsel legal services. It is the intention of the city through this solicitation to 
enter into a contract with a general counsel that will serve the city council, city manager, city clerk, and 
city staff in various capacities. The city reserves the right to enter into contracts with attorneys other than 
the general counsel should the council so choose from time to time. Proposals are invited from any 
qualified State of Alaska licensed attorney-at-law or law firm. Attorneys/Firms (proposers) must be 
qualified to represent the city in all State of Alaska Courts and the U.S. District Court for the District of 
Alaska. 

 
II. SCOPE OF SERVICES, TERM, AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
It is the intention of the city to enter into an agreement under which a qualified proposer will provide 
general counsel legal services on behalf of the city at a fixed hourly rate. The FY 2021 budgeted amount for 
legal services for the city was approximately $150,000.00. This includes amounts for general counsel 
services and also for other legal services. 
 

A. SCOPE OF SERVICES. Proposer is expected to provide the city with general counsel legal services, to 
include the following: 
1. Serve as the legal advisor of and be responsible to the city council, and advise the city 

manager and city clerk concerning matters affecting city administration, as well as perform other 
duties as may be prescribed by the city council. 

2. Prepare legal documents such as ordinances, resolutions, contracts, conveyances, etc., and legal 
opinions as needed. Provide limited representation in court, negotiate on the city’s behalf and 
handle other legal matters that may arise. 

3. Be readily available for consultation by the city council, city manager, city clerk, and city staff. 
4. Draft opinion letters regarding, among other subjects, the interpretation of the city code and 

charter, state and federal laws, and policies. 
5. Perform other such duties as may be prescribed for the city attorney by ordinance or by 

direction of the city council, city manager, and/or city clerk. 
6. Must work effectively with the city council, city manager, city clerk, and city staff, and also 

with other public agencies with which the city has legal relations. 
7. The city attorney or designee is required to attend scheduled city council meetings; unless excused 

by city council 
 

B. TERM. The term of the professional services agreement is two years, with three one-year options 
unilaterally available to the city. The agreement may be terminated at the convenience of the city at 
any time. 

 
C. QUALIFICATIONS 

1. The proposer (or primary attorney for the city in a firm—see III.B.1. below) must be a 
member in good standing of the State of Alaska Bar Association and be qualified to represent the 
city in all State of Alaska Courts and the U.S. District Court for the District of Alaska. 

2. The proposer (or primary attorney for the city in a firm) should have at least five years of 
professional experience as legal counsel for an entity such as an Alaska city, municipality, or 
borough. 

3. The proposer (or primary attorney for the city in a firm) should be experienced and proficient in 
legal matters affecting the city, to include without limitation, Alaska municipal law including AS 29, 
city charter and code, Matanuska-Susitna Borough Code, other applicable State of Alaska law 
and federal law. 

 

Page 68 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Request for Proposal 2021 General Counsel Legal Services Page 3 of 8 

III.   RESPONSE TO RFP 
 
To achieve a uniform review process and obtain a reasonable degree of comparability, a proposer should 
submit a Response to RFP following the below contents, which must not exceed fifteen (15) pages in 
length, double spaced, including Page 1 of this RFP and the Letter of Transmittal. In page 1 of this RFP, 
provide the name, address, phone number, fax number, website URL of the proposer, together with the name 
of the person who the city clerk may contact in regard to the RFP. Detail each of the following points in your 
Proposal: 

 
A. Letter of Transmittal (limited to one page). 

1. Briefly state proposer’s understanding of the services to be performed and make a positive 
commitment to provide the services as specified. 

2. Statement confirming the primary attorney expects to be available to perform legal services for 
the City for five years. 

3. Give the name(s) of the person(s) who are authorized to make representations for proposer, 
their titles and telephone numbers. 

4. The letter must be signed by an individual who has the authority to bind the 
proposer. 

 
B. Statement of Qualifications. 

1. Statement of Qualifications of the attorney who will be the primary attorney for the city and who 
will attend council meetings. 

2. Statement of Qualifications of other attorneys, if any, who will support the primary attorney. 
These attorneys may be in the same firm or available under other arrangement. 

 
The Statement of Qualifications should address the municipal experience, other applicable legal 
experience, and education of the attorney(s) in III.B.1. and III.B.2. List municipal law cases 
handled by the primary attorney and supporting attorneys and whether the attorney’s clients were 
the prevailing party or not. In particular, identify and describe the experience over the last five years 
and the level of expertise in the following areas: 

a. Attendance at council/assembly meetings and related legal issues; 
b. Issues facing the city; 
c. Ordinance drafting; 
d. Zoning and land use regulation; 
e. Ordinance enforcement; 
f. Municipal sales tax law and enforcement; 
g. Public employment labor law; 
h. Municipal purchasing and contracts; 
i. Police liability; 
j. Acquisition and disposition of public property; and 
k. Intergovernmental issues with State and Federal agencies. 

 
C. Conflicts. List all matters and/or cases where the proposer currently represents an individual or entity 

with interests potentially adverse to the city, to include without limitation, the Matanuska-Susitna 
Borough, City of Wasilla, Matanuska-Susitna Borough School District, State of Alaska, University 
of Alaska, Mat-Su Regional Medical Center, and Alaska Railroad Corporation, etc. Describe the 
scope of the representation and nature of the conflict. 

 
D. Availability. Specify how available the primary attorney will be to the city. State whether the city will 

be primary attorney’s main client or one of several or one of many. State the current workload 
of the primary attorney and how that attorney intends to accommodate the city’s work. State the 
location of the office from which the primary attorney will serve the city. 

 

Page 69 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Request for Proposal 2021 General Counsel Legal Services Page 4 of 8 

E. Disclosure. Disclose any alleged significant prior or ongoing contract failures, contract breaches, any 
civil or criminal litigation or Bar Association investigation which involve the proposer as a party or 
in which the proposer has been judged guilty or liable or sanctioned. This is a mandatory disclosure. 

 
F. Cost. Proposals must state the following cost information: 

1. An hourly cost for services to be provided. 
2. Travel time cost, if any, including: 

(a) Cost per hour of travel. 
(b) Round trip travel time for one meeting located at Palmer City Hall, 231 W. Evergreen 

Avenue, Palmer, Alaska. 
3. Total annual cost to the city for 600 hours of legal services plus attendance at twenty-four four-

hour council meetings and ten two-hour consultation meetings at City Hall. This cost is for 
purposes of comparison and is not a representation of actual legal services to be provided. 

 
Attorney Fees: 

Hourly Fee Description Total Fee 
 600 Hours of Legal Services $ 
 24 Four-Hour Council Meetings $ 
 10 Two-Hour Consultations at City $ 
 10 Travel Time To and From City $ 
 50 Hours of Paralegal Services $ 
 Grand Total: $ 

 
See Section 5(A) of the Agreement that limits travel time fees.   

 
G. Municipal experience. List all municipalities for which the proposer has performed legal services in the 

last five years. Provide a short description of the services, the date performed, and the municipal 
contact person. 

 
H. References. Provide a minimum of five (5) references from similar clients, to include local 

government, state and/or private clients, for whom the proposer has performed legal services 
within the last three years. Proposers are required to provide Attachment B, Reference 
Questionnaire, to the references they list. The references must submit the Reference 
Form directly to the Palmer city clerk by September 27, 2021. It is the proposer’s responsibility 
to ensure that the completed forms are received by the city clerk on or before the proposal submission 
deadline for inclusion in the evaluation process. References that are not received, or are not complete, 
may affect the proposer’s evaluation score. The city may contact any or all references for validation 
of information submitted and other information. 

 
I. Local Preference.  Does the primary attorney have a law office in the City (please provide a City 

Business License Number), live in the City, or within five (5) miles of City limits.  Please provide proof 
of residency. 

 
IV. PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND AWARD PROCESS 

 
A. Proposals will be evaluated and scored on a 100 point scale based upon the following criteria. 

 
Qualifications of Primary Attorney: 30 Based on criteria in III.B., better qualifications--higher score 

Qualifications of Other Attorneys: 5 Based on criteria in III.B., better qualifications--higher score 

Conflicts (may exclude proposer): 7 Based on III.C., more/greater conflicts—lower score  

Page 70 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Request for Proposal 2021 General Counsel Legal Services Page 5 of 8 

Availability: 7 Based on III.D., more available—higher score 

Disclosure (may exclude proposer): 7 Based on III.E., negative disclosures—lower score 

Cost: 20 Based on III.F., lower cost--higher score 

Local Preference: 4 Based on III.I, full points awarded if local 
 
 Subtotal for initial selection: 80 

Council interview 20 Better demonstration of qualifications and ease of 
understanding for Council—higher score 

 Grand Total: 100 

Proposals will be kept confidential until a contract is awarded, subject to law. 
 

B. The city may contact the references provided by the proposer; contact any proposer to clarify a 
response; contact current and/or prior clients; solicit information from any available source 
concerning any aspect of a proposal; and see and review any other information deemed pertinent to 
the evaluation process. 

 
C. After the proposals are received a panel of three (3) people will initially evaluate and score the 

proposals, select the top two to five proposals, and submit them to the council for review and 
interviews. The council will then review selected proposals and interview the selected proposers, 
provided the council may also review any or all non-selected proposals and interview any or all non-
selected proposers. The council may re-evaluate and re-score any or all of the proposals. 

 
D. At the conclusion of proposal evaluations and interviews, the city council will determine its choice of 

the highest rated proposer. Any award is contingent upon the successful negotiation of final contract 
terms and upon approval by the city council. Negotiations shall be confidential and not subject to 
disclosure to competing proposers unless and until an agreement is reached. If contract 
negotiations cannot be concluded successfully, the city upon written notice to all selected proposers 
may negotiate a contract with the next highest scoring proposer or proposers or withdraw the RFP. 

 
V. SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS 

 
A. RFP TIMELINE 

 
TASK DATE/TIME 
 
Deadline for submission and opening of proposals 09/27/21 at 1:00 pm 
 
Initial evaluation period 09/28/21 to 10/01/21 

 
Council interview of selected proposers 10/05/21 
 
Selection of attorney/firm 10/05/21 
 
Commencement of services 01/01/2022 

 
NOTE: These dates represent a tentative schedule of events. The city reserves the right to modify 

Page 71 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Request for Proposal 2021 General Counsel Legal Services Page 6 of 8 

these dates at any time, with appropriate notice to applicable proposers. 
 

B. Proposers shall submit one (1) original proposal marked “MASTER” and twelve (12) identical 
copies to: John Moosey, City Manager, City of Palmer, 231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer, AK 
99645. 

 
C. Proposals shall be clearly labeled in a sealed envelope or box as follows:  

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: Legal Counsel Services 

 
D. Proposals must be received at the above-reference address no later than 1:00 pm on September 27, 

2021. Proposals that do not arrive by proposal opening time and date WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. 
Proposers may submit their proposal at any time prior to the above stated deadline. Facsimile, email 
or telephone proposals will NOT be considered. 

 
E. Proposals may be modified by facsimile, email or written notice, provided such notice is received prior 

to the opening of the proposals. Proposers may transmit proposal modifications by facsimile or email 
at their own risk. Only changes in cost information (reduce or increase fee by $X; reduce or increase 
total annual cost by $Y) may be submitted by facsimile or email; do not send actual cost data via 
facsimile or email. The city will not be responsible for any error or failure in facsimile or email 
transmission or receipt. 

 
F. For ease of evaluation, the proposal should be presented in a format that corresponds to and 

references sections outlined in this RFP, and should be presented in the same order. Responses to 
each section and subsection should be labeled so as to indicate which item is being addressed. 

 
G. Proposals should be prepared in such a way as to provide a straightforward, concise delineation of 

capabilities to satisfy the requirements of this RFP. Expensive bindings, colored displays, 
promotional materials, etc. are not necessary or desired. Emphasis should concentrate on conformance 
to the RFP instructions, responsiveness to the RFP requirements, and on complete and clear content. 

 
H. The proposal must be signed by the individual legally authorized to bind the proposer. 

 
VI. GENERAL TERMS, CONDITIONS AND EXCEPTIONS 

 
A. Performance of the proposer may be rated semi-annually for the first year following contract 

award and then annually for the term of the contract by the city council. 
 

B. The city reserves the right to alter, amend, or modify any provisions of this RFP, or to withdraw this 
RFP, at any time prior to the award of a contract pursuant hereto, if it is in the best interest of the city 
to do so. 

 
C. The city reserves the right to waive informalities and minor irregularities in proposals received. 

 
D. The city reserves the right to reject any or all proposals received prior to contract award. 

 
E. The city shall not be obligated to accept the lowest priced proposal, but may make an award in the 

best interests of the city after all factors have been evaluated. 
 

F. Alterations, modifications or variations to a proposal may not be considered unless authorized by the 
RFP or by addendum or amendment. 

 

Page 72 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Request for Proposal 2021 General Counsel Legal Services Page 7 of 8 

G. Proposals may be withdrawn by written or facsimile notice received prior to the proposal opening time. 
Withdrawals received after the proposal opening time will not be considered. Proposers transmit 
proposal withdrawals by facsimile at their own risk. The city will not be responsible for any error or 
failure in facsimile transmission or receipt. 

 
H. Prices offered by proposers in their proposals are an irrevocable offer for the term of the 

contract, provided that the proposer may increase its hourly fee $5 per year for each one-year 
extension the city chooses to exercise. The awarded proposer agrees to provide the services at the 
costs, rates and fees as set forth in its proposal in response to this RFP (plus any applicable 
$5 per year increase noted above). No other costs, rates or fees shall be payable to the awarded 
proposer for implementation of their proposal. 

 
I. The city will not be liable for any costs incurred by a proposer to prepare its proposal. Costs to 

develop the proposals and any other such expenses incurred by the proposer in responding to the 
RFP are entirely the responsibility of the proposer and shall not be reimbursed in any manner by the 
city. 

 
J. All proposals submitted become the property of the city and will be returned only at the city’s 

option and at the proposer’s request and expense. The master copy of each proposal shall be 
retained for official files and will become public record after the award of the contract. 

 
K. The city will not be liable for federal, state or local excise taxes. 

 
L. Proposer’s response to this RFP shall constitute an agreement to all terms and conditions specified in 

the RFP, including, without limitation, the Attachment A professional-services- agreement form and all 
terms and conditions therein, except such terms and conditions that the proposer expressly excludes, 
which must be written in bold, italicized, and underscored font. Exceptions will be taken into 
consideration as part of the evaluation process. 

 
M. The city reserves the right to negotiate final contract terms with any proposer selected. The 

contract between the parties will consist of the RFP, including the professional services agreement 
form, together with any modifications thereto, and the awarded proposer’s proposal, together with 
any modifications and clarifications thereto that are submitted at the request of the city during the 
evaluation and negotiation process. 

 
N. Proposer understands and acknowledges that the representations above are material and important, 

and will be relied on by the city in evaluation of the proposal. Any proposer misrepresentation may 
be treated as fraudulent concealment from the city of the true facts relating to the proposal. 

 
O. The city reserves the right to conduct a background inquiry of each proposer that may include 

collection of appropriate criminal history information, contractual and business associations and 
practices, Bar sanctions and reprimands, employment histories and reputation in the legal and 
business communities. By submitting a proposal to the city, the proposer consents to such an 
inquiry. 

 
P. All interested and qualified proposers will be considered, but not every proposer need be interviewed. 

 
Q. The city is an equal opportunity employer and complies with Title I of the American with Disabilities 

Act. Proposers who need accommodation to respond to this RFP may call the City Manager at 907-
761-1317. 

 

Attachment A:  City of Palmer professional services agreement form. 

Page 73 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Request for Proposal 2021 General Counsel Legal Services Page 8 of 8 

 
Attachment B:  Reference Questionnaire. 

 
(End of RFP) 

Page 74 of 162



**SAMPLE** 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

THIS Agreement made and entered into this ___ day of ______ , 2021 by and between the City 
of Palmer, an Alaska municipal corporation (the City), and _________________ _ 
(Attorney). 

Section 1. Engaged Employment of Attorney 

The City hereby agrees to engage the Attorney and the Attorney hereby agrees to perform the services 
hereafter set forth. 

Section 2. Attorney's Representations and Warranties, and Manner of Performance 

(A) Attorney hereby represents and warrants to the City, and the City relies upon said
representations and warranties, that Attorney is a professional in the subject area in which
services are to be provided and that Attorney has more than adequate experience, skill,
knowledge, and competence to perform the services set forth in this Agreement.

(B) Attorney accepts the relationship of trust and confidence between it and the City. Attorney
covenants to perform its services under this Agreement with due diligence, due care, and in a
good and professional manner.

(C) Attorney agrees to be bound to the City for all attorney-client duties.

Section 3. Scope of Services 

Attorney agrees to perform the following services for the City. 

(A) Serve as the legal advisor of and be responsible to the City Council, and advise the City
Manager, and City Clerk concerning matters affecting City administration, as well as perform
other duties as may be prescribed by the City Council.

(B) Prepare legal documents such as ordinances, resolutions, contracts, conveyances, etc., and
legal opinions as needed. Provide limited representation in court, negotiate on the City's behalf
and handle other legal matters that may arise.

(C) Be readily available for consultation by the City Council, City Manager, City Clerk, and City
staff.

(D) Draft op1mon letters regarding, among other subjects, the interpretation of the Palmer
Municipal Code and Charter, state and federal laws, and policies.

(E) Perform other such duties as may be prescribed for the City Attorney by ordinance or by
direction of the City Council and/or City Manager.

(F) Must work effectively with the City Council, City Manager, City staff, and also with other
public agencies with which the City has legal relations.

City of Palmer: Legal Services Professional Services Agreement Page 1 of9 

Page 75 of 162



(G) The City Attorney, or designee, is required to attend scheduled city council meetings; unless
excused by City Council.

Section 4. Time of Performance 

The services of the Attorney shall commence on January I, 2022, for a term three years, two one-year 
extension options unilaterally available to the City. The period of performance may be extended for 
additional periods beyond five years only by the mutual written agreement of the parties. The 
agreement may be terminated at the convenience of the City at any time. 

Section 5. Compensation 

(A) Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the City shall pay the Attorney a total sum for all
legal services, all non-secretarial paralegal services, approved third-party expenses, and all
allowed travel time for the term of this Agreement in accordance with the following provisions:

(I) Hourly cost for services to be provided:
Attorneys: ____ /Hour 
Paralegals: ____ /Hour 

(2) No travel time shall be charged for two meetings per month. Travel time to and from
Palmer may not exceed two hours total. Subject to the prior limitations, travel time
may be charged at Attorney's normal travel time rate, but may not exceed one-third of
Attorney's hourly fee.

(B) Attorney may increase its hourly fee $5.00 per year for each one-year extension the City
chooses to exercise.

(C) Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the City shall not provide any additional
compensation, payment, use of facilities, service or other thing of value to the Attorney in
connection with performance of Attorney's duties under this Agreement. The parties
understand and agree that, except as otherwise provided in this section, administrative
overhead and other indirect or direct costs the Attorney may incur in the performance of its
obligations under this Agreement have already been included in computation of the Attorney's
fee and may not be charged to the City.

Section 6. Method and Time of Payment 

(A) The City will compensate the Attorney in accordance with Section 5. Compensation, which
compensation shall constitute the full and complete compensation for the Attorney's services
and performance under this Agreement. Payments will be made on receipt of monthly billing.

(B) No payment will be disbursed until approved by the City. The City Manager shall review
Attorney's billings in a timely manner, and to request from the Attorney necessary
explanations or additional documentation within fifteen ( 15) days of receipt of billing by the
City. The City expects to pay within thirty-one (31) days of receipt of billing or receipt of
requested explanations or documentation acceptable to the City, whichever is later.

Section 7. Termination of Agreement for Cause 

City of Palmer: Legal Services Professional Services Agreement Page 2 of9 

Page 76 of 162



If, through any cause, the Attorney shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under this 
Agreement, or if the Attorney shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this Agreement, 
the City shall thereupon have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the Attorney 
of such termination and specifying the effective date thereof, at least five (5) days before the effective date of 
such termination. All finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys and reports or other material 
(to include without limitation data and information kept on computer, disk, video, tape, etc.) prepared by the 
Attorney arising out of or connected with this Agreement are the property of the City and shall be delivered 
to the City by or upon the effective date of termination or upon request. The Attorney shall be entitled to 
receive compensation in accordance with the payment provisions of Section 5. Compensation of this 
Agreement only for work completed to the City's satisfaction in accordance with Section 5. Compensation of 
this Agreement and the other terms of this Agreement. 

Section 8. Termination for Convenience of City 

The City may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving written notice to the Attorney of such 
termination and specifying the effective date of such termination. All finished or unfinished documents and 
other materials as described in Section 7. Termination of Agreement for Cause are the property of the City 
and shall be delivered to the City by or upon the effective date of execution of this section. The Attorney 
shall be entitled to receive compensation in accordance with the payment provisions of Section 5. 
Compensation of this Agreement only for work completed to the City's satisfaction in accordance with Section 
5. Compensation of this Agreement and the other terms of this Agreement. If this Agreement is terminated
due to the fault of the Attorney, Section 7. Termination of Agreement for Cause of this Agreement shall
govern the rights and liabilities of the parties.

Section 9. Causes Beyond Control 

In the event the Attorney is prevented by a cause or causes beyond control of the Attorney from performing 
any obligation of this Agreement, non-performance resulting from such cause or causes shall not be deemed 
to be a breach of this Agreement, which will render the Attorney liable for damages or give rights to the 
cancellation of the Agreement for cause, provided that Attorney duly and timely notifies the City in writing 
of the cause or causes, which writing must be titled "Cause or Causes Beyond Control of Attorney." 
However, if and when such cause or causes cease to prevent performance, the Attorney shall exercise all 
reasonable diligence to resume and complete performance of the obligation with the least possible delay. The 
phrase "cause or causes beyond control," as used in this section, means any one or more of the following 
causes which are not attributable to the fault or negligence of the Attorney and which prevent the performance 
of the Attorney: fire, explosions, acts of God, war, orders or law of duly constituted public authorities, and 
other major uncontrollable and unavoidable events, all of the foregoing which must actually prevent the 
Attorney from performing the terms of the Agreement as set forth herein. Events which are peculiar to the 
Attorney and would not prevent another Attorney from performing, including, but not limited to financial 
difficulties, are not causes beyond the control of the Attorney. Based on Attorney's "Cause or Causes Beyond 
Control of Attorney," the City will determine whether the event preventing the Attorney from performing is 
a cause beyond the Attorney's control. 

Section 10. Modifications 

(A) The parties may mutually agree to modify the terms of the Agreement only by means of an
agreement in writing signed by both parties. Modifications to the Agreement shall be
incorporated into the Agreement by written amendments.

City of Palmer: Legal Services Professional Services Agreement Page 3 of9 

Page 77 of 162



(B) It is expressly understood that the City may require changes in the scope of services and an
unreasonable refusal by the Attorney to agree to modification in the scope of services will be
the basis for termination of the Agreement for cause.

Section 11. Equal Employment Opportunity 

The Attorney will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment in violation of law, to 
include without limitation, because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, physical handicap, age, status 
as a disabled veteran, or veteran of the Vietnam era. The Attorney shall take affirmative action to ensure that 
applicants are employed and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin, physical handicap, age, status as a disabled veteran, or veteran of the Vietnam 
era. Such actions shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotions, or 
transfers; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoffs or terminations; rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation; selection for training, including apprenticeship; and participation in recreational and 
educational activities. The Attorney agrees to post in conspicuous places in its office available for employees 
and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination 
clause. The Attorney will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 
Attorney; state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, 
color, religion, sex, national origin, physical handicap, age, status as a disabled veteran, or veteran of the 
Vietnam era. The Attorney will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts for any work 
covered by this Agreement. 

Section 12. Interest of Members of City and Others 

No officer, member or employee of the City and no member of its governing body, and no other public official 
of the governing body shall participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her 
personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership or association in which he or she is, directly 
or indirectly, interested or having any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or 
the proceeds thereof. 

Section 13. Non-Assignability 

(A) The Attorney shall not assign any interest in this Agreement and shall not transfer any interest
in the same (whether by assignment or novation) without the prior written consent of the City,
thereto; provided, however that claims for money due or to become due to the Attorney from
the City under this Agreement may be assigned by court order or to a bank, trust company, or
other financial institution without such approval. Notice of any such assignment or transfer
shall be furnished promptly to the City, or the Attorney shall be responsible to the City for any
moneys due the assignee of this Agreement which are paid directly to the Attorney.

(B) The Attorney shall not delegate duties or otherwise subcontract work or services under this
Agreement without the prior written approval of the City.

City of Palmer: Legal Services Professional Services Agreement Page 4 of9 

Page 78 of 162



Section 14. Interest of Attorney 

The Attorney covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, 
which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services required to be performed 
under this Agreement. The Attorney further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement it shall not 
knowingly employ any person having any such interest and that it shall reasonably inquire of all its employees 
to determine that they have no such interest. 

Section 15. Findings Confidential 

Except as required by law, including court orders directing disclosure, any reports, information, data, etc., 
given to or prepared or assembled by the Attorney under this Agreement which the City requests to be kept 
confidential shall not be made available to any individual or organization by the Attorney without the prior 
written approval of the City. 

Section 16. Officials Not to Benefit 

No members of the Congress of the United States and no resident commissioner shall be admitted to any share 
or part thereof or to any benefit to arise from this Agreement. No member of the legislature or officer of the 
state of Alaska or the City shall be admitted to any share or part hereof or to any benefit to arise from this 
Agreement. 

Section 17. Publication, Reproduction and Use of Materials 

No material produced, in whole or in part, under this Agreement shall be subject to copyright in the United 
States or in any other country. The City shall have unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute and 
otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other materials prepared under this Agreement. 

Section 18. Audits and Inspections 

At any time during normal business hours and as often as the City may deem necessary, there shall be made 
available for examination all of Attorney's records with respect to all matters covered by this Agreement and 
Attorney will permit representatives of the City to audit, examine, and make excerpts or transcripts from such 
records, and to make audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, conditions of 
employment, and other data relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. Except in case of emergency, 
Attorney must make such records available upon five (5) day's notice. In case of emergency, Attorney must 
make such records available immediately upon request. In performing such audits and investigations, the City 
and its representatives shall not unduly interfere with the ability of Attorney to perform his duties under this 
Agreement. 

Section 19. Jurisdiction; Choice of Law 

Any civil action arising from this Agreement shall be brought in the superior court for the third judicial district 
of the state of Alaska at Palmer. The law of the state of Alaska shall govern the rights and obligations of the 
parties. 

Section 20. Non-Waiver 

The failure of the City at any time to enforce a provision of this Agreement shall in no way constitute a waiver 
of the provisions, nor in any way affect the validity of this Agreement or any part thereof, or the right of the 
City thereafter to enforce each and every provision hereof. 

City of Palmer: Legal Services Professional Services Agreement Page 5 of9 

Page 79 of 162



Section 21. Permits, Laws and Taxes 

The Attorney shall acquire and maintain in good standing all permits, licenses and other entitlements 
necessary to the performance under this Agreement. In performing its obligations under this Agreement, 
Attorney shall comply with all applicable statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations. The Attorney shall pay 
all taxes pertaining to its performance under this Agreement. 

Section 22. Relationship of the Parties 

The Attorney shall perform its obligations hereunder as an independent contractor of the City. The City may 
administer this Agreement and monitor the Attorney's compliance with this Agreement but shall not supervise 
or otherwise direct the Attorney except to provide recommendations and to provide approvals pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

Section 23. Administration of this Agreement 

(A) The City Manager or designee will be the representative of the City administering this
Agreement.

(B) The services to be furnished by the Attorney shall be administered by the City Manager. In
the event that Attorney is unable to serve for any reason to perform his obligations under this
Agreement, the Attorney shall appoint a successor in interest but such appointment will be
subject to a written approval of the City.

Section 24. Integration 

This instrument and all appendices and amendments hereto embody the entire agreement of the parties. There 
are no promises, terms, conditions or obligations other than those contained herein; and this Agreement shall 
supersede all previous communications, representations or agreements, either oral or written, between the 
parties. To the extent they are not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement; the following documents 
are incorporated by reference into this Agreement as if fully set forth herein: 

Section 25. City Held Harmless 

(A) The Attorney shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless from any lawsuit,
action, claim or liability, including reasonable attorney's fees and costs, arising out of or related
to any wrongful or negligent act, error or omission of the Attorney or any sub-Attorney as a
result of the Attorney's or any sub-Attorney's performance pursuant to this Agreement.

(B) The Attorney shall not indemnify, defend, save and hold the City harmless from any lawsuit,
action, claim or liability, including reasonable attorney's fees and costs, arising out of wrongful
or negligent acts, errors or omissions solely of the City occurring during the course of or as a
result of the performance of this Agreement.

(C) Where lawsuits, actions, claims or liability, including reasonable attorney's fees and costs,
arise out of wrongful or negligent acts of both the Attorney and the City occurring as a result
of the performance of this Agreement, the Attorney shall indemnify, defend, save and hold the
City harmless from only that portion of the lawsuit, action, claim or liability, including
reasonable attorney's fees and costs, arising out of or related to any wrongful or negligent act,

City of Palmer: Legal Services Professional Services Agreement Page 6 of 9 

Page 80 of 162



error or omission of the Attorney or any sub-Attorney as a result of the Attorney's or any sub
Attorney's performance pursuant to this Agreement. 

Section 26. Interpretation and Enforcement 

This Agreement is being executed by the parties following negotiations between them. It shall be construed 
according to the fair intent of the language as a whole, not for or against any party. The titles of sections in 
this Agreement are not to be construed as limitations or definitions but are for identification purposes only. 

Section 27. Attorney Insurance 

(A) The Attorney will maintain during the course of the contract attorney's errors and omissions
insurance in the amount of at least $1,000,000 per claim and $2,000,000 aggregate, with a
deductible no greater than $25,000. In addition, the policy is a claims-made policy; the
Attorney must maintain such policy of insurance after the termination of the contract for a
period of six years or alternatively obtain an extended reporting endorsement (tail coverage)
for six years after the termination providing the same coverage, or a combination of the two.
Attorney shall annually provide the City with a certificate of insurance for errors and omissions
insurance from attorney's insurance company showing the then-current coverage limits
(including extended reporting endorsement, if applicable).

(B) The Attorney will, at its own expense, secure and maintain and will file with the City the
following proper and acceptable insurance coverage, including defense and indemnification of
the City. The insurance coverage will be secured with an insurance company acceptable to the
City.

( 1) Crime Insurance Coverage: Limit $1,000,000 endorsed to include third party coverage
for the City of Palmer.

(2) Comprehensive General Liability or Commercial General Liability Coverage: Limit
$1,000,000 per claim and $2,000,000 aggregate Bodily Injury and Property Damage,
combined Single Limit. Coverage to include:

Premises Operation 
Products/Completed Operations 
Independent Contractors 
Blanket Contractual 
Broad Form Property Damage 
Personal Injury with Exclusion "C" deleted 

(3) Professional Liability: Limit $2,000,000.

(4) Worker's Compensation Insurance in compliance with the laws of the state of Alaska,
AS 23.30, et. seq., and federal jurisdiction where the work is being performed, covering
all employees engaged in the performance of the work specified in this Agreement.
Employer's liability limits shall be: $100,000 each accident; $500,000 disease--policy
limit; and $100,000 disease--each employee.

(5) Comprehensive Automobile Liability: Limit $1,000,000 Bodily Injury and Property
Damage, Combined Single Limit. Coverage to include all vehicles driven by
employees engaged in the performance of the work specified in this Agreement.

City of Palmer: Legal Services Professional Services Agreement Page 7 of 9 

Page 81 of 162



(6) Unemployment Insurance by payment of employment security taxes for all employees
hired by the Attorney to work on this project. In the event of the Attorney's failure to
pay such taxes, the City will withhold an amount sufficient to pay such taxes from any
payments owed to the Attorney by the City. The City also reserves the right to contact
the Alaska State Department of Labor, in order to determine whether unemployment
security taxes have been paid by the Attorney. The City further reserves the right to
withhold that portion of employment security taxes owed to any employees pending
notification of the Attorney's unemployment security tax clearance from the Alaska
State Department of Labor.

(7) Cyber Liability: Limit $1,000,000 endorsed to include third party coverage for the City
of Palmer.

(C) A lapse in insurance coverage is a material breach of this Agreement, which may result in
immediate termination of the Agreement, pursuant to Section 7. Termination of Agreement for
Cause.

(D) Each policy of insurance required by this section shall provide for no less than 30 days' advance
notice to the City prior to cancellation. Each policy (other than for worker's compensation)
shall name the City as an additional insured. Each policy shall be endorsed to waive all rights
of subrogation against the City by reason of any payment made for claims under the above
coverage. Attorney's insurance coverage shall be primary to any coverage carried by the City,
which may cover the work specified in this Agreement. Attorney's insurance carrier must be
an admitted carrier in the State of Alaska or must be best rated A+7 or better.

Section 28. Understanding 

The Attorney acknowledges that the Attorney has read and understands the terms of this Agreement, has had 
the opportunity to review the same with counsel of its choice, and is executing this Agreement of his own free 
will. 

Section 29. Severability 

If any section or clause of this Agreement is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or is otherwise 
invalid under the law, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 30. Compliance with Law 

Attorney shall comply with all applicable Federal, State of Alaska and City laws, regulations, and ordinances 
in performing his duties hereunder. 

Section 31. Notices 

Any notice required pertaining to the subject matter of the Agreement shall be personally delivered or mailed 
by prepaid first-class, registered or certified mail to the following address: 

City: City Manager 
City of Palmer 
231 W. Evergreen Ave. 
Palmer, AK 99645 

City of Palmer: Legal Services Professional Services Agreement Page 8 of9 

Page 82 of 162



Attorney: 

CITY OF PALMER ATTORNEY: 

John Moosey, City Manager 

City of Palmer: Legal Services Professional Services Agreement Page 9 of9 

Page 83 of 162



City of Palmer Reference Questionnaire                                                                                                 Page 1 of 3 
 

 

CITY OF PALMER 

231 West Evergreen Avenue 
Palmer, Alaska 99645 
Phone (907) 745-3271 

Fax (907) 745-0930 
www.palmerak.org 

 
 

REFERENCE QUESTIONNAIRE FOR: 
 
 

(Name of attorney or law firm requesting reference) 
 

Regarding City of Palmer Request for Proposals for General Counsel Legal Services 
 

This form is being submitted to you for completion as a reference for the attorney or law firm 
listed above.  Please return this form to John Moosey, City Manager, at the above address but 
marked “Confidential”, no later than September 27, 2021 at 1:00 pm. The completed form must 
not be returned to the attorney or firm requesting the reference.  Thank you.  
 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION WHEN COMPLETED 
 

Company providing 
reference: 
 

 

Contact name and  
title/position: 
 

 

Contact telephone 
number: 
 

 

Contact email: 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Page 84 of 162

http://www.palmerak.org/


City of Palmer Reference Questionnaire                                                                                                 Page 2 of 3 
 

QUESTIONS 
 

1.  In what capacity have you worked with this attorney or law firm in the past? 
 
 
 

2. How would you rate this attorney’s or law firm’s knowledge and experience? _______ 
(3=Excellent; 2=Satisfactory; 1= Unsatisfactory) 
Comments: 
 
 
 

3. How would you rate this attorney’s or law firm’s responsiveness to timelines? _______ 
(3=Excellent; 2=Satisfactory; 1= Unsatisfactory) 
Comments: 
 
 
 

4. What is your level of satisfaction with written materials produced by the attorney or law 
firm? _______ 
(3=Excellent; 2=Satisfactory; 1= Unsatisfactory) 
Comments: 
 
 

5. How would you rate the dynamics/interaction between the attorney or firm and your 
staff?   _______ 
(3=Excellent; 2=Satisfactory; 1= Unsatisfactory) 
Comments: 
 
 
 

6. Who were the firm’s principal attorneys involved in your project and how would you 
rate them individually? _______ 
(3=Excellent; 2=Satisfactory; 1= Unsatisfactory) 
 
 

  

Page 85 of 162



City of Palmer Reference Questionnaire                                                                                                 Page 3 of 3 
 

Name: ______________________________________  Rating: _________ 
 
Name: ______________________________________  Rating: _________ 
 
Name: ______________________________________  Rating: _________ 
 
Name: ______________________________________  Rating: _________ 
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 

7. With which aspect(s) of this attorney or law firm’s services are you most satisfied? 
Comments: 
 
 
 

8. With which aspect(s) of this attorney or firm’s services were you least satisfied? 
Comments: 
 
 
 

9. Would you recommend this attorney or firm’s services to your organization again? 
Comments: 
 

Page 86 of 162



City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-049 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Action Memorandum No. 21-049 

Subject:  Authorize the City Manager to Execute an Agricultural Lease with Country Garden Farms LLC for a 
Parcel of Land Containing Approximately 5.44 Acres of Airport Land Described as Lots 1, 2, 3, 4 & 5 Mohan 
Subdivision Located on Outer Springer Loop.  

Agenda of: August 24, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Frank Kelly, Airport Superintendent 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 544.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
X Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 544.00 

Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 
Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
X Budgeted Line item(s): 03-00-00-3432 

Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 87 of 162



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-049 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1. Draft PMA AG Lease No. 21-001 Country Garden Farms LLC 
2. Country Garden farms LLC Identity Documents 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Country Garden Farms LLC would like to lease 5.44 acres of land from the Palmer Municipal Airport known as Lots 
1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 of Mohan Subdivision.  This property has recently become available as our previous Lessee Mr. 
Robert Shumaker has given up his lease earlier in the year due to medical reasons. 
 
It is the intent of Country Garden Farms LLC to cultivate sod on this parcel as part of their normal operations 
farther down the Springer system.  A commercially viable Sod field takes some time to establish, so Bill Longbrake 
has requested a 5-year renewal option to be able to fully recapture upfront costs associated with the development.  
Bill Longbrake and Country Garden Farms LLC is a longtime valley farmer with a very stable operation.  The 
proposed sod field is completely compatible with airport operations. 
 
The well on the property adds value to this agricultural lease and is useful for Country Garden Farms LLC.          
 
 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Action Memorandum No. 21-049. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 88 of 162



 

1 
 

City of Palmer 
231 West Evergreen Avenue 

Palmer, AK 99645 
907-745-3271 

 
PALMER MUNICIPAL AIPORT 

AGRICULTURAL LEASE AGREEMENT No. 21-001 
 

 This LEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ____________________(date), by 
and between the City of Palmer, a municipal corporation organized and existing under its charter 
and the laws of the State of Alaska, hereinafter referred to as the “Lessor”, and between Country 
Garden Farms, LLC, hereinafter “Lessee”. 
 
1. Property.  The property leased hereby is described as follows:  Lots 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5, 
Mohan Subdivision, containing 5.44 acres, as illustrated in Exhibit A attached hereto and 
incorporated herein.  
 
2. Rent. The Lessee shall pay to the Lessor as rent during the term hereof the sum $544.00 
per year, payable annually in advance without demand, beginning December 31, 2021, and 
continuing on the same day of each and every year thereafter during the term of the lease at the 
office of the Lessor set forth in Section 19 or at such other place as the Lessor may designate in 
writing.  (Rent is derived as follows: $100.00 per acre per year X 5.44 acres).     
 
3. Term.  The term of the lease shall be for a period of 5 years, commencing on the 1st day 
of September 2021 (the “Commencement Date”) and ending on the 31st day of December 2026, 
subject to the terms of provisions hereof.  Provided Lessee fully and faithfully performs all of the 
covenants and conditions contained herein for the term of the Lease, Lessor may approve an 
additional period of 5 years at the expiration of this Lease so that the total number of years 
available to Lessee is 10 years. If Lessor approves an additional period of 5 years, the rental rate 
will increase by 10% or $110.00 per acre as follows ($110.00 per acre X 5.44 acres = $598.40 
annually)  
 
4. Use of Property.  The Property shall be used only for the growing and harvesting of 
agricultural products, turf or hay, which are not in nature, considered bird attractants.  
If under the sole opinion of the City of Palmer, said crops result in a bird attractant 
and are detrimental to Palmer Municipal Airport and aviation activities, at Lessees 
expense, Lessee will till agricultural crops under within seven (7) days written notice.  
Lessee understands that No appeal of this decision is possible.  The Property shall not 
be used for any other purpose. 
 
5. Operations on Property.  All operations conducted on the Property by the Lessee as 
incidents of use specified in paragraph 4 of this lease shall be conducted by the Lessee in 
accordance with the best course of agricultural stewardship practiced. Should the Lessee fail to 
take any action required by said best course of agricultural stewardship or should the Lessee fail 
to conduct any operation undertaken by him on the Property in accordance with said best course 
of agricultural stewardship, the Lessor may, after serving ten (10) days written notice of such 
failure on the Lessee in the manner provided for service of notices in this lease, terminate this 
lease.  

Page 89 of 162



 

2 
 

 
6. Waste or Nuisance.  The Lessee shall not commit or permit the commission by others any 
waste, petroleum products, or the release of any hazardous material on the Property; the Lessee 
shall not maintain, commit, or permit the maintenance or commission of any nuisance on the 
Property; and the Lessee shall not use or permit the use of the Property for any unlawful purpose. 
The Lessee shall not maintain any equipment or conduct any repairs on the Property. 
 
7. Insurance Hazards.  The Lessee shall not commit or permit the commission of any 
hazardous acts on the Property nor use or permit the use of the Property in any manner that will 
increase the existing rates for or cause the cancellation of any insurance policy insuring the 
Property. The Lessee shall, at his own cost and expense, comply with any and all requirements 
of Lessor’s insurance carriers necessary for the continued maintenance at reasonable rates of 
reasonable insurance on the Property.  
 
8. Maintenance.  The Lessee shall, at his own cost and expense, keep and maintain the 
Property in good order and in as safe and clean a condition as they were when received by him 
from the Lessor. 
 
9. Alterations and Liens.  The Lessee shall not make or permit any other person to make any 
alterations to the Property or to any improvement thereon or facility appurtenant thereto without 
the written consent of the Lessor first had and obtained. The Lessee shall keep the premises free 
and clear from any and all liens, claims, and demands for work performed, materials furnished, 
or operations conducted thereon at the instance or request of Lessee.  
 
10. Inspection by Lessor.  The Lessee shall permit the Lessor or Lessor’s agents, 
representatives, or employees to enter the Property at all times for the purpose of inspecting the 
Property to determine whether the Lessee is complying with the terms of this lease and for the 
purpose of doing other lawful acts that may be necessary to protect the Lessor’s interest in the 
Property.  
 
11. Acceptance by Lessee.  The Lessee accepts the Property in its present condition. The 
Lessee agrees with, and represents to the Lessor, that the Property has been inspected by him 
and that he has been assured by means independent of the Lessor or any agent of the Lessor of 
the truth of all facts material to this lease and that the Property is being leased by the Lessee as 
a result of his inspection and investigation and not as a result of any representations made by 
the Lessor or any agent of the Lessor. 
 
12. Hold Harmless.  The Lessee agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the Lessor and the 
Property free and harmless from any and all claims, liability, loss, damage, or expense resulting 
from the Lessee’s occupation and use of the Property, specifically including without limitations 
any claim, liability, loss, or damage arising: 
 
(a)  By reason of the injury to person or property, from whatever cause, while in or on the 
Property or in any way connected with the property or with the personal property in or on the 
Property including any liability for injury to the persons or personal property of the Lessee, his 
agents, officers, or employees: 
 

Page 90 of 162



 

3 
 

(b) By reason of any work performed on the Property or materials furnished to the Property 
at the instance or request of the Lessee, his agents, or employee: 
 
(c)  By reason of the Lessee’s failure to perform any provision of this lease  
 
Or to comply with any requirement imposed on him or on the Property by any duly authorized 
governmental agency or political Subdivisions; Because of the Lessee’s failure or inability to pay 
as they become due any obligations incurred by him in the agricultural operations to be conducted 
by him on the Property. 
 
      Subleasing and Assigning.   The Lessee shall not encumber, assign, sublet, or otherwise 
transfer this lease, any right or interest in this lease, or any right or interest in the Property, and 
any such transfer, whether voluntary or involuntary, by operation of law or otherwise, is void and 
shall, at the option of Lessor, terminate this lease. Neither shall the Lessee allow any other 
persons, other than the Lessee’s agents, family, and employees, to use the Property or any part 
thereof.  
 
13. Abandonment by Lessee.  Should the Lessee breach any provision of this lease or 
abandon the Property prior to the natural termination of the term of this lease, the Lessor may: 
 
(a) Continue this lease in effect by not terminating the Lessee’s right to possession of the 
Property, in which event the Lessor shall be entitled to enforce all his rights and remedies under 
this lease, including the right to recover the rent specified in this lease as it becomes due under 
this lease: or 
 
(b) Terminate this lease and recover from the Lessee: 
 
(1) All rents that would come due under this lease; 
 
(2) Any other amounts necessary to compensate the Lessor for all detriment proximately 
caused by the Lessee’s failure to perform his obligations under this lease. 
 
14. Default by Lessee.  All covenants and agreements contained in this lease are declared to 
be conditions to this lease and to the term hereby demised to the Lessee. Should the Lessee 
default in the performance of any covenant, condition, or agreement contained in this lease the 
Lessor may terminate this lease and re-enter and regain possession of the Property in the manner 
then provided by the laws of unlawful detainer of the State of Alaska then in effect. 
 
15. Insolvency of Lessee.  The insolvency of the Lessee as evidenced by a receiver being 
appointed to take possession of all substantially all of the property of the Lessee, the making of 
a general assignment for the benefit of creditors by the Lessee, or the adjudication of the Lessee 
as a bankrupt under the Federal Bankruptcy Act shall terminate this lease and entitle the Lessor 
to reenter and regain possession of the Property. 
 
16. Attorney’s Fees.  Should any litigation be commenced between the parties to this lease 
concerning the Property, this lease, or the rights and duties in relation thereto, the Lessor shall 
be entitled to reasonable attorney fees pursuant to Alaska Rule of Civil Procedure 82. 
 

Page 91 of 162



 

4 
 

17. Notices.  Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, any and all notices or other 
communications required or permitted by this lease or by law to be served on or given to either 
party hereto by the other party hereto shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly served and 
given when personally delivered to the party to whom it is directed, or, in lieu of such personal 
service, when deposited in the United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, addressed to the 
Lessee or to the Lessor at their below specified addresses. Either party, the Lessee, or the Lessor, 
may change their address for the purpose of this paragraph by giving written notice of such 
change to the party in the manner provided in this paragraph. 
 
Lessor’s address: 
   City Manager, City of Palmer 
   231W. Evergreen Ave.  

Palmer, AK 99645 
 
Lessee’s address:  

Country Garden Farms, LLC 
   1201 S. Grover Lane  
   Palmer, AK. 99645 
 
18. Heirs and Successors.  This lease shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the parties hereto, but nothing in this 
paragraph contained shall be construed as a consent by the Lessor to any assignment of this 
lease or any interest therein by the Lessee. 
 
19. Miscellaneous. 
 
(a) This instrument contains all of the agreements and conditions made between the parties 
to this lease and may not be modified orally or in any other manner than by an agreement in 
writing signed by all parties to this lease or their respective successors in interest, or assigns. 
 
(b) Time is of the essence of each term and provision of this lease. 
 
(c) The titles of the paragraphs of this lease shall not be considered to be part of the 
     lease for purposes of construction and interpretation. 
 
(d) If any terms or provisions of this lease or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall to any extent be invalid or Unenforceable, the remainder of this lease, or the 
application of such term or provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it 
is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby and each term and provision of this 
lease shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 
 
20. Waiver.  The waiver of any breach or any of the provisions of this lease by the Lessor shall 
not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach by the Lessee either of 
the same or of another provision of this lease. 
 
21. Cancellation/Reduction.  Any mortgage or statute notwithstanding, Lessor may cancel this 
lease at any time between and including November 1 and March 31 by so notifying Lessee and 

Page 92 of 162



 

5 
 

paying Lessee an amount equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the rent paid by Lessee for the previous 
year. Lessor may cancel the lease at any time between and including April 1 and October 31 by 
so notifying Lessee and paying Lessee an amount equal to (a) one-fourth (1/4) the previous 
year’s rent payment plus (b) one and 2/10 (1.2) times the price of the fertilizer spread (if any) 
on the Property for the then current growing season, minus (c) 75/100 (.75) times (b), if the first 
hay crop has been removed. Lessor may exercise these rights to cancel the lease or reduce 
acreage with or without cause. In addition to Lessor’s right to cancel, from time-to-time Lessor 
may reduce the acreage. The above formula shall be used on a prorate basis for such reductions 
in acreage. 
                                                                    
22. Lessee shall, each year this agreement is in effect, give notice in writing on or before 
January 30th that he intends to operate and harvest the crop according to the agreement. Failure 
to do so shall be termination of the agreement and the Lessor may immediately seek a new 
tenant. 

 
 
LESSOR: CITY OF PALMER 

 
 
 

BY: ______________________________________   DATE: ________________ 
      John Moosey, City Manager 
 
 
LESSEE: Country Garden Farms, LLC  
 
 
 
BY: ______________________________________   DATE: ________________ 
      Bill and Rae Ann Longbrake Living Trust, dated November 27, 2018 
      William E. Longbrake, Trustee  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93 of 162



 

6 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 Mohan Subdivision 
 
 
 

 

Page 94 of 162



 

7 
 

 

Page 95 of 162



Page 96 of 162



Page 97 of 162



Page 98 of 162



Page 99 of 162



Page 100 of 162



City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-050 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Action Memorandum No. 21-050 

Subject:  Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract Addendum with HDL Engineering Consultants, LLC 
in the amount of $379,837.00 for the Work associated with the 2021 Taxiway (N) November Design Project after 
funding is received by a new FAA Grant at 100%. 

Agenda of: August 24, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Frank J. Kelly, Airport Superintendent 
 

Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 379,837.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
X Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 379,837.00 

Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s): 
X Not budgeted 30-03-10-7137 FAA Taxiway (N) November Design Grant
 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 101 of 162



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-050 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1. HDL Engineering Consultants Taxiway (N) November Proposal Dated April 28, 2021 

 
 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Currently, the airport has leased out all lease lots available that are suitable for larger aircraft, additional lease 
lots are available south of Runway 10/28, but they are not accessible from the airfield. There are no parcels 
available for small aircraft on the north half of the airfield and if there were, these lots are too small and lack 
taxiway/taxilane access that will support DG II and larger aircraft. The City has potential tenants in line for leasing 
lots adjacent to Taxiway N. Taxiway N will provide access to these lots between Runway 10/28 and Taxiway A. 
This contract addendum with HDL Engineering Consultants will fund the design work for Taxiway (N) November 
and the associated interlinks as well as north of Runway 10/28 where tenants are restricted by weight limitations 
on Taxiway B which was constructed for small aircraft. The extension of Taxiway J to Taxiway A is the most cost-
effective solution to remove the weight limitations for the hangar area north of Runway 10/28. 
 
The construction of Taxiway (N) November will also add impervious surface and therefore may contribute to 
additional storm water runoff.  Since runoff leaving the airport has contributed to localize flooding in recent 
years, and the Taxiway N project is anticipated to increase runoff, the design and construction of a storm water 
management system is necessary to have a complete and viable taxiway project. 
 
The project will continue the ongoing efforts to remove tree obstructions from the Runway 10/28 transitional 
surface and utilize excess materials to re-grade the area between Taxiway A and Aprons A, B, C, and D to meet 
taxiway safety and object free area grading criteria. 
 
Once the anticipated FAA grant funding is awarded, the City will be reimbursed all of this upfront costs of 
approximately $45,016.25.  All FAA grants awarded in 2021 are funded at 100% with no sponsor match required. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Action Memorandum No. 21-050. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 102 of 162



Page 103 of 162



Page 104 of 162



Page 105 of 162



Page 106 of 162



Page 107 of 162



Page 108 of 162



Page 109 of 162



Page 110 of 162



City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-051 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Action Memorandum No. 21-051 

Subject:  Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract Addendum with HDL Engineering Consultants, LLC 
in the amount of $345,422.00 for the Phase II Design Work on the 2021 Avigation Easement Planning Study after 
funding is received by a new FAA Grant at 100%. 

Agenda of: August 24, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Frank J. Kelly, Airport Superintendent 
 

Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 345,422.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
X Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 345,422.00 

Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s): 
X Not budgeted 30-03-10-7138 FAA Avigation Easement Planning Study Phase II
 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 111 of 162



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-051 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1. HDL Engineering Consultants AEPS Phase II Proposal Dated July 7, 2021 

 
 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Currently, the airport does not have adequate rights to control and maintain the entire approach surface to 
Runway 16.  In 1990, the threshold was displaced 500 feet from the runway end to provide an obstruction-free 
20:1 approach surface, due to trees located off the airport property on Mat-Su Borough-owned land.  Subsequent 
tree growth has resulted in trees in the approach surface to the displaced threshold.   
 
This contract addendum with HDL Engineering Consultants will fund the ongoing design work for Phase II of the 
needed Avigation Easement Planning Study.  The proposed project includes preparing a planning study report 
and an Environmental Assessment (EA) for the avigation easement. The project includes project scoping 
coordination with agencies, a public engagement process, government to government consultation, a cultural 
resources inventory and field survey. The project also includes Section 106 consultation, wetlands delineation, 
and eagle nest survey. The project also includes an updated obstruction survey of the area of approach to runway 
16, to allow for an accurate assessment of number of trees that will be impacted by mitigation. A Section 4(f)/6(f) 
process is included in the project to define the appropriate mitigation. Finally, an Environmental Assessment report 
will be prepared for the proposed action including alternatives considered, steps taken to minimize adverse 
impacts, and evaluation of the proposed mitigation. 
 
Once the anticipated FAA grant funding is awarded, the City will be reimbursed all of this upfront costs of 
approximately $33,840.00.  All FAA grants awarded in 2021 are funded at 100% with no sponsor match required 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Action Memorandum No. 21-051. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 112 of 162



Page 113 of 162



Page 114 of 162



Page 115 of 162



Page 116 of 162



Page 117 of 162



Page 118 of 162



Page 119 of 162



Page 120 of 162



City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Special Meeting 
July 27, 2021 

A. CALL TO ORDER

A Special Meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on July 27, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 
Palmer, Alaska. Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

B. ROLL CALL

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
Edna DeVries, Mayor Sabrena Combs, Deputy Mayor 
Julie Berberich Brian Daniels 
Jill Valerius Steve Carrington 

Council Member Best was absent and excused. 

Staff in attendance were the following: 
Michael Gatti, City Attorney John Moosey, City Manager 

Nichole Degner, Interim City Clerk Kimberly Green, Human Resources Specialist 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Main Motion: 

Moved by: 
Seconded by: 

To A rove the Agenda. 

Combs 
Valerius 

Prima Amendment #1: 

Moved by: 

Remove interview F.2.a because of the a� licant's withdrawal. 

Combs 
Seconded by: 
Vote: 
Action: 

Vote on Motion: 

Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
Vote: 
Action: 

Valerius 
Unanimous (Absent: Best) 
Motion Carried 

To AQQrove the Agenda as Amended. 

Combs 
Valerius 
Unanimous (Absent: Best) 
Motion Carried 

E. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

Mayor DeVries opened Audience Participation. Seeing no one come forward, Audience Participation was 
closed. 

F. NEW BUSINESS

City of Palmer, Alaska: July 27, 2021, Special Meeting Page 1 of 3 

Page 121 of 162



1. City Clerk Interview Process Discussion.

Mayor DeVries directed attention to the list of interview questions on council table to be asked of each candidate; 
inquired of the Council whether to ask all the questions or just some. Deputy Mayor Combs suggested that 
because one of the candidates had withdrawn, there would be time to ask each candidate all of questions. 

Kimberly Green, Human Resources Specialist, informed each candidate has been informed to expect a one-half 
hour interview. 

Main Motion: 

Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
Vote: 
Action: 

To ask all of the interview guestions to each candidate. 

Combs 
Carrington 
Unanimous {Absent: Best) 
Motion Carried. 

2. City Clerk Interviews.

ir. Vanessa Mutchnik 

b. Glenda Worsham

Mayor DeVries conducted the City Council interview of applicant Glenda Worsham for the position of Palmer City 
Clerk (via Zoom). 

c. Deana Smith

Mayor DeVries conducted the City Council interview of applicant Deana Smith for the position of Palmer City Clerk 
(via Zoom). 

p 

Main Motion: 

Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
Vote: 
Action: 

To move into Executive Session. 

Combs 
Berberich 
Unanimous (Absent: Best) 
Motion Carried. 

G. EXECUTIVE SESSION
1. Subjects That Tend to Prejudice the Reputation and Character of Any Person - City Clerk Candidates.

(Note: All City Clerk candidates may be discussed during the executive session. Personnel action regarding
the City Clerk Candidates may be taken following the executive session.)

Following exit of Executive Session at 5:42 p.m., the special meeting resumed. 

Main Motion: 

Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
Vote: 
Action: 

To proceed with background checks on both City Clerk candidates 
followed by creating an agenda to move forward with the hiring process. 

Combs 
Berberich 
Unanimous {Absent: Best) 
Motion Carried. 

City of Palmer, Alaska: July 27, 2021, Special Meeting Page 2 of 3 

Page 122 of 162



H. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE

Mayor DeVries noted three items placed on the table: 1) Letter from Sean Parnell, UAA Chancellor's Dept.; 
2) Letter from Jackie Ivey GoForth, citizen concerns; 3) City Clerk Interview Questions.

I. COUNCIL COMMENTS

No direction was given to staff for legislation to be placed on a future agenda. 

l. ADJOURNMENT

With no further business before the City Council, the meeting adjourned at 5:45 p.m. 

APPROVED this_ day of August, 2021. 

Nichole Degner, Interim City Clerk 

Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

City of Palmer, Alaska: July 27, 2021, Special Meeting Page 3 of 3 

Page 123 of 162



Page 124 of 162



A. CALL TO ORDER

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
July 27, 2021 

A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on July 27, 2021 in the Council Chambers, Palmer, 
Alaska. Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

B. ROLL CALL

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following Council Members were present: 
Edna DeVries, Mayor Sabrena Combs, Deputy Mayor 
Julie Berberich Brian Daniels 
Richard W. Best Jill Valerius 
Steve Carrington 

Council Member Best was absent. 

Staff in attendance were the following: 
John Moosey, City Manager 
Brad Hanson, Community Development Director 

Michael Gatti, City Attorney (telephonically) 
Nichole Degner, Interim City Clerk 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 

D. APPROVAL OFAGENDA
1. Consent Agenda

a; Introduction and Setting a Public Hearing to July 27, 2021 for Ordinance Ne. 21 915 Amending
Palmer Municipal Code Sections 2.15.030(H) and 2.61.020(]) to Move Parks Maintenance to 
Community Development. 

a. Resolution No. 21-025: Accepting and Appropriating an American Rescue Plan Grant offer from
the Federal Aviation Administration in an amount of $32,000.00 by way of the Airport Rescue Plan
Act of 2021 for additional assistance to airports during the COVID 19 public health emergency and
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Grant When Offered.

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings
a. June 22, 2021, Special Meeting Minutes
b. June 22, 2021, Regular Meeting Minutes
c. July 6, 2021, Special Meeting Minutes

Main Motion: To A��rove A endal Consent Agenda and Minutes 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Daniels 

City Manager Moosey proposed amendments to the Agenda: 1) Remove 1.a. to a future meeting; 2) Replace 
1.a with H.2 Resolution 21-025 as it does not require a public hearing; 3) Remove I, Executive Session, as it
will not be necessary this evening.

City of Palmer, Alaska: July 27, 2021, Regular Meeting Page 1 of 4 

Page 125 of 162



Prima� Amendment #1: To Amend the A enda as s 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Carrington 

Vote: Unanimous (Absent: Best) 
Action: Motion Carried 

Manager. 

Vote on Motion: To Approve Agenda, as amended, Consent Agenda, and Minutes 

Vote: l Unanimous (Absent: Best)
Action: Motion Carried. 

E. COMMUNICATION AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS:

1. Presentation from Palmer Museum and Visitor Information Center Director, Sam Dinges

Mr. Sam Dinges narrated a slide presentation updating the Council on activities of the Palmer Museum and the 
Visitor's Center this past year. 

F. REPORTS

1. City Manager's Report

City Manager Moosey reported on the City of Palmer election process for the election on October 5; signed a 
contract with Christie Smithers, who has election experience, to see us through the election; reported 
corrections to the election packet; informed of access problems with the City's Facebook page; reported he will 
be attending the AML and Manager's Association Meeting in Fairbanks next week; spoke to tonight's agenda 
item asking for Resolution to oppose the proposed sales tax initiative for infrastructure projects; commented 
on the Alaska Journal of Commerce article announcing new broadband capacity that will cover the State of 
Alaska. 

[Council Member Best joined the meeting] 

City Manager Moosey fielded Council Member questions concerning tree growth in the Matanuska River Park 
located in the avigation easement at the Airport. 

2. Mayor's Report

Mayor DeVries reported in appreciation for the Matsu Miners. 

3. City Attorney's Report

City Manager Moosey reported that City Attorney Gatti does not have a report tonight. 

G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

Ms. Lee Hendrickson, Palmer resident, spoke in appreciation for winning the beautification award, that there is 
a nice sign in her front yard; discussed the Palmer Pride Picnic noting it was hard to find information about it; 
commented regarding the avigation easement noting was glad to hear replacement and improvement are part 
of the process. 

Mr. Daniel Potter testified regarding the Amendment to Ordinance 21-013 related to marijuana businesses, 
speaking in opposition to the high restrictions on licensing requirements. 

City of Palmer, Alaska: July 27, 2021, Regular Meeting Page 2 of 4 

Page 126 of 162



Ms. Jackie Ivey Goforth, testified regarding mailout ballots and the postal service as it relates to customer 
service and delivery. 

There being no others come forward, Mayor Devries closed audience participation at 7:46 p.m. 

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. Ordinance No. 21-014: Amending the Zoning Map to Revise the Zoning Designation of Lot 200,
Block 1, Felton Add Subdivision, from R-3, Medium Density Residential to R-4, High Density.

Director Brad Hanson provided a staff report. 

Public Hearing: 

Mr. Daniel Potter spoke in full support of the zoning change. 

Mr. Marty Moffat, one of the owners of the property, spoke in support of the zoning change. 

There being no others coming forward, Mayor DeVries closed the public testimony at 7:15 p.m. 

Main Motion: To A�prove Ordinance 21-014. 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Daniels 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried by roll call vote. 

� Reselutien Ne, 21 9251 Accepting and Appropriating an American Rescue Plan Grant offer from the 
Federal Aviation Administration in an amount of $32,000.00 by w-ay of the Airport Rescue Plan Act of 
2021 for additional assistance to airports during the COVID 19 public health emergency and Authorizing 
the City Manager to Execute the Grant When Offered. 

I. EXECUTIJJE SESSION

-h Matters, the Immediate Knowledge of Which VJould Clearly Have an Adverse Effect Upon the Finances
of the Public Entity and Matter which by Law, �4unicipal Charter, or Ordinances are Required to be 
Confidential Potential Litigation Attorney Client Communication: State of Alaska City of Palmer 
Dispatch Agreement (note: action may be taken by the council follm•,ing the e*ecutive session). 

J. NEW BUSINESS

1. Resolution No. 21-026: A Resolution Stating an Opposition to a Proposed Sales Tax Initiative
for Infrastructure Projects Initiated by the Matanuska-Susitna Borough.

Main Motion: To A�prove Resolution No. 21-026. 

Moved by: Valerius 
Seconded by: Berberich 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried by roll call vote. 

Mayor DeVries announced she received an email from a Palmer resident asking that it be read into the record. 

Interim City Clerk Nichole Degner read the email from Kaitlen Levit into the record, opposing an increase to the 
sales tax. 

City of Palmer, Alaska: July 27, 2021, Regular Meeting Page 3 of 4 

Page 127 of 162



City Manager Moosey reported the City of Wasilla and City of Houston also sent letters in opposition. He noted 
two other considerations the Borough may make is a tax on fuel and a tax on gravel. Further brief discussion 
followed. 

2. Action Memorandum No. 21-045: Recommendation to the City Council for the City Clerk
Interim Appointment.

Following brief discussion in appreciation of Nichole Degner's willingness to fill in as Interim City Clerk: 

Main Motion: To Ap�rove Action Memorandum No. 21-045. 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Valerius 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried by roll call vote. 

K. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

Mr. Daniel Potter testified regarding not being able to make large dollar purchases in the city of Palmer, having 
to go elsewhere; that it is a loss of sales tax revenue for the City. 

There being no others coming forward, Mayor DeVries closed public testimony at 8:01 p.m. 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS

No direction was given to staff for legislation to be placed on a future agenda. 

There was discussion regarding Council Member Best's failed telephonic attempts to connect to the meeting. 

M. ADJOURNMENT

With no further business before the City Council, the meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 

APPROVED this 24th day of August, 2021. 

Nichole Degner, Interim City Clerk 

Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

City of Palmer, Alaska: July 27, 2021, Regular Meeting Page 4 of 4 

Page 128 of 162



City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-030 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Resolution No. 21-030 

Subject:  Amending the 2021 Fee Schedule for the MTA Events Center 

Agenda of: August 24, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: John Moosey, City Manager 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 

This legislation (√): 
Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 
Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 
Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 

Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 129 of 162



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-030 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
1. Resolution No. 21-030 
2. 2021 Amended Fee Schedule 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The ideal time to update the fee schedule at the MTA Events Center (MTAEC) is at the start of the ice season 
which runs from September into April. Annually, the fee schedule is adopted as part of the annual budget process 
for the start of the new calendar year. To provide better continuity of operations at the MTAEC this resolution is 
amending the fee schedule for the MTAEC in order for the changes to take effect before the start of the 2021-
2022 season. 
 
 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Resolution No. 21-030 
 
 

Page 130 of 162



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-030 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Resolution No. 21-030 
 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Amending the 2021 Fee Schedule for the City of Palmer 
 

WHEREAS, the City Manager proposes to amend the fee schedule for the MTA Events Center; and 
 
WHEREAS, amending the 2021 fee schedule for the MTA Events Center will coincide with the 2021-2022 

ice season. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby amends the 2021 Fee 

Schedule with the effective date of September 1, 2021. 
 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this ____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 

________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

 
_____________________________ 
Nichole Degner, Interim City Clerk 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: City Manager Moosey 

Date: August 24, 2021 
Action:  

Vote:  
Yes: No: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 131 of 162



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

City of Palmer 
 
 
 
 

2021 Fee Schedule 
 
 

(Amended by Resolution No. 21-0XX) 
 
 
 

Page 132 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 2 

Table of Contents 
 
Airport Fees ......................................................................................................................................... 3 
Animal Control Fees ........................................................................................................................ 3 
Appeals ........................................................................................................................................... 4 
Application Filing Fees (Filing fees are nonrefundable) .................................................................. 4 
Building Inspector Inspection Services and Fees ........................................................................... 4 
Building Permit Fees Based on Total Valuation .............................................................................. 4 
Business Licenses ........................................................................................................................... 5 
Community Center (Railroad Depot) Rental ................................................................................... 6 
Community Center (Railroad Depot) Rental Miscellaneous Fees .................................................... 6 
Election Fees .................................................................................................................................. 6 
Equipment Rental ........................................................................................................................... 7 
False Alarms…………………………………………………………………………………………………………..8 
Fire Equipment Items…………………………………………………………………………………………………8 
Fire Training Center Rental Fees………………………………………………………………………………8 
Fire Training Ground Items…………………………………………………………………………………….9 
Miscellaneous…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….9 
MTA Events Center…………………………………………………………………………………………………….9 
Neighborhood Park Development Fee Schedule ........................................................................... 10 
Palmer Public Library Fees ............................................................................................. 10 
Permits ............................................................................................................................................. 11 
Public Information Requests ........................................................................................................ 11 
Sales Tax .............................................................................................................. 11 
Special Assessments ..................................................................................................................... 12 
Utilities ......................................................................................................................................... 12 
 

Page 133 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 3 

 

Airport Fees 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron A (1-27, T1-T9) 33’x44’ Transient (per day) $ 5 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron A (1-27, T1-T9) 33’x44’ Monthly 

Apron C (6-33, 39-45) 33’x44’ Monthly 
$ 30 

Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron A (1-27, T1-T9) 33’x44’ Quarterly 
Apron C (6-33, 39-45) 33’x44’ Quarterly 

$ 85 

Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron A (1-27, T1-T9) 33’x44’ Annual  
Apron C (6-33, 39-45) 33’x44’ Annual 

$ 310 

Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron B (1-39)  $ 30 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron B (1-39)  $ 85 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron B (1-39)  $ 310 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron C (1-5, 34-38) 60’X61’ Monthly $ 50 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron C (1-5, 34-38) 60’X61’ Quarterly $ 145 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron C (1-5, 34-38) 60’X61’ Annual $ 550 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron(1-2,T10) 75’x75’ Transient (per day) $ 50 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron(1-2,T10) 75’x75’ Quarterly $ 275 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron(1-2,T10) 75’x75’ Annual $ 1,050 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron(3-6,T11)100’x100’ Transient (per day) $ 85 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron(3-6,T11)100’x100’ Quarterly $ 500 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron(3-6,T11)100’x100’ Annual $ 1,950 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron (7, T12)100’x120’ Transient (per day) $ 100 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron (7, T12)100’x120’ Quarterly $ 600 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron (7, T12)100’x120’ Annual $ 2,350 
Rotary Aircraft Tie Down Space Helipad (1-3) 60’ Circle Transient (per day) $ 25 
Rotary Aircraft Tie Down Space Helipad (1-3) 60’ Circle Transient Monthly $ 110 
Rotary Aircraft Tie Down Space Helipad (1-3) 60’ Circle Transient Quarterly $ 315 
Rotary Aircraft Tie Down Space Helipad (1-3) 60’ Circle Transient Annual $ 1,210 
Aircraft Impoundment Fee $ 400 
Storage fee for impounded aircraft (per month) $ 200 
Airport Lease Application Fee $ 500 
Fuel Flowage Fee (per gallon delivered) $ .05 
*All Tie Down Spaces add 3% sales tax including transient rate. 
Transient rate is for stay greater than 4 hours per day on airport grounds. 
Rates are not pro-rated. 

  

 

Animal Control Fees 
Animal license – dog/cat (three-year license – expires three years from date of issue) $ 10 

Lost tag – animal license (expires three years from original issue date) $ 2.50 
Animal impound (per animal) $ 30 
Dangerous/vicious animal registration (one-time fee) $ 25 

 
  

Page 134 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 4 

Appeals 

Appeal to hearing officer regarding a decision of the Planning and Zoning Commission: 

Nonrefundable application filing fee $ 300 
Deposit for preparation of the appeal record $ 500 

 

Application Filing Fees (Filing fees are nonrefundable) 
Mobile home park $ 500 
Large Retail Establishment $ 500 
Conditional Use Permit $ 250 
Variance Request $ 250 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) $ 250 
Zone Change/Palmer Municipal Code Text Amendment $ 250 
Accessory Dwelling Unit $ 50 
Short Term Rental and Annual Renewal $ 75 

 
Building Inspector Inspection Services and Fees 

Inspections outside normal business hours (per hour)* $ 125 
Re-inspection fees assessed under provisions of Section 305.8 of the 97 UAC (per 
hour)* $ 100 

Inspection for which no fee is specifically indicated (per hour)* $ 100 
For use of outside consultants for plan check and inspections, – actual costs** $  

* Or the total hourly cost to the jurisdiction, whichever is the greatest. There is a two hour minimum and 
this cost shall include supervision, overhead, equipment, hourly wages and fringe benefits of the employees 
involved. 
** Actual costs include administrative and overhead costs 
 

Building Permit Fees Based on Total Valuation 
Total Valuation:  Fee: Additional Fee 

$1 to $500 $ 26  

$501 to $2000 $ 26 for the first $500 plus $3.40 for each additional $100, 
or fraction thereof, to and including $2000 

$2001 to $25,000 $ 77 for the first $2000 plus $15.59 for each additional 
$1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including $25,000 

$25,001 to $50,000 $ 435.50 for the first $25,000 plus $11.25 for each additional 
$1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including $50,000 

$50,001 to $100,000 $ 716.75 for the first $50,000 plus $7.80 for each additional 
$1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including $100,000 

$100,001 to $500,000 $ 1,106.75 For the first $100,000 plus $6.24 for each additional 
$1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including $500,000 

$500,001 to 
$1,000,000 $ 3,602.75 For the first $500,000 plus $5.28 for each additional 

$1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including $1,000,000 

$1,000,001 and up $ 6,242.75 for the first $1,000,000 plus $4.06 for each additional 
$1,000, or fraction thereof 

  

Page 135 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 5 

 
Business Licenses 

Business License:  
Annual license $ 25 
Biennial license $ 50 

State Fair License (duration of Fair – not transferable to annual license) $ 25 
Special Event License (duration of the special event up to three days 
(not transferable to annual license) $ 10 

Door to Door Solicitors License (non-refundable annual fee) $ 50 
 
Business License – failure to apply before business opens: $ 25 

 
Business License – late filing fee:  

Through February 1 $ 25 
Additional fee on March 1 (not to exceed $50) $ 25 
State Fair vendors failure to apply for a business license by the first day of the 
Fair. $ 25 

State Fair vendors additional fee on September 7 $ 25 
Special Event License $ 10 

 
Business License – failure to display business license: $ 25 

 
Door to Door Solicitors License Reprint – full application process $ 50 
Copy of Business License list $ 25 

 
  

Page 136 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 6 

 

Community Center (Railroad Depot) Rental 

Rental Period ---------- 8 am to Midnight      Rental Rate Security 
Deposit 

Daily: Monday through Thursday      $ 225 
Daily weekend: Friday through Sunday      $  275 

    $   150 
    $   150 

Recurring Use      Rental Rate Security 
Deposit 

Minimum rental of 15 calendar days per year: 
Monday through Thursday     $    165 
Friday through Sunday     $    190 

 
    $   150 
    $   150 

 
* If use drops below number required for rate assessed due to cancellations, rental fee will be 
assessed from applicable rental period stated above. 

 

***CANCELLATION POLICY*** 
 If 45 or more days notice Full Refund rental rate and deposit 
 If less than 45 days notice City keeps deposit and one day rental 
 If rental 3 consecutive days or more Cancel 60 days in advance – Full refund 
 If rental 3 consecutive days or more Cancel less than 60 days in advance – 
 City keeps deposit and one day rental 

 
Community Center (Railroad Depot) Rental Miscellaneous Fees 

Security Deposit $             150 
Screen Remote Deposit $               65 
Screen Usage Fee $               10 
Sound System Usage Fee $               40 
Re-hanging of ceiling noise baffles (per hour basis) $               55 
Lost key fee $             106 
Cleaning (if more than two hours is required – per hour basis) $               75 

Note: there is a two hour minimum overtime fee for any City employee called out after work 
hours for any problems. 

 
Election Fees 

Recount ballot application deposit (per precinct) $        200 
 
 
  

Page 137 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 7 

 

Equipment Rental 
Equipment rental and dry equipment rates when City must repair damages to City property. Labor 
costs are in addition to these rates. 

Compactor $ 35 
Compressor $ 60 
Generator $ 80 
Push Mower $ 25 
Backhoe & Attachment $ 95 
Bucket Truck $ 95 
Cement Mixer $ 45 
Chainsaw $ 30 
Cut Off Saw $ 25 
Drain Cleaner $ 50 
Dredge $ 200 
Dump/Flat Bed $ 65 
Dump Trucks (8 yard) $ 105 
Garbage Truck $ 100 
Graders $ 122 
Hot Patcher $ 75 
Jumping Jack $ 35 
Front End Loader $ 98 
Riding Mower $ 55 
Paver $ 65 
Pickup Truck $ 40 
Plow/Sand Truck (large) $ 105 
Pressure Washer $ 25 
Road Striper Power Liner $ 45 
Rototiller $ 35 
Snow Blower $ 210 
Spreader $ 25 
Steam Truck $ 95 
Street Sweeper $ 98 
Trac Star Fusion Machine  (per  hour,  4  hour  min)  monthly  price = $19,000, 
monthly fee can be pro-rated $ 115 

Trailer $ 55 
Trash Pump $ 25 
Vactor $ 95 
Water/Sewer/Maintenance Utility Trucks $ 40 
Weed Blower $ 25 
Weed Whacker $ 25 

 
  

Page 138 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 8 

 
 
 
 

False Alarms 
False Burglar Alarm Fees (Within a 12 month period): 

First false alarm $ 0 
Second false alarm $ 0 
Third false alarm $ 75 
Fourth false alarm $ 100 
Fifth false alarm $ 125 
Sixth false alarm $ 150 
Seventh false alarm $ 175 
Eighth false alarm $ 200 
Ninth false alarm $ 225 
Tenth false alarm $ 250 
Each false alarm in excess of ten $ 300 

False Fire Alarm Fees (Within a 12 month period): 
First false alarm $ 0 
Second false alarm $ 300 
Third false alarm $ 350 
Fourth false alarm $ 400 
Each false alarm in excess of four $ 400 

 
 

Fire Equipment Items 
Fire/Rescue Apparatus, each (Includes STD Tools on Vehicle) ** (per day) $ 500 
Portable Fire Pumps ** (per hour) $  50 
Portable Tank (per day) $  50 
Fire Hose, each section (all sizes) (per day) $  20 
Self-contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) ** (per day) $ 100 
SCBA Spare Cylinder (includes refilling) (per day) $  25 
Additional fees will be charged for replacement of consumable items used (i.e. fuel for 
fires, wood supplies, etc.) 

 

** Additional fees will be charged for an Operator/Supply Officer of these items at the rate of 
$18 per hour. 

 
 
 

Fire Training Center Rental Fees 
Classroom, each (per day, includes A/V and restrooms) $              150 
Copy machine (per copy) $       .25 
CPR Mannequins, each (per day) $         20 
First-aid Training Kit (per day) $         10 
Airway Training Kit (per day) $         20 
Firefighting Small Classroom Props (per day) $         10 
Fire Behavior Carmody Kit (per day) $         20 
Hydrant Cutaway Large Prop (per day) $         20 
Pump Cutaway Large Prop (per day) $         20 
Training ground (per day, includes hydrant usage and field) $       100 

 

Page 139 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 9 

Fire Training Ground Items 
Smoke house (per hour) $             50 
Smoke Generator Machine ** (per day) $             50 
Tower Building and Burn Room (per hour) $             50 
Vehicle Extrication Training Grounds (per day – approximately) $  100 
Roof Simulator ** (per hour) $ 30 
Hazmat Props (per hour) $ 20 
Live Fire Class A Exterior Props ** (per hour) $ 20 
Live Fire Class B Exterior Props ** (per hour) $ 50 
Portable Fire Extinguishers 2.5 LB (per day) $ 10 
Portable Fire Extinguishers 20 LB (per day) $ 10 
Portable Fire Extinguishers 10 LB (per day) $ 15 

 
 

Miscellaneous 
Notary fee (per act) $ 5 
  $ 30 
Administrative fees on credit card charges of $5,000 or higher (in person or phone 
transactions only) 

 3% 
 
 

MTA Events Center 
Events Center Rental (ice covered) per day $     2,500 
Events Center Rental (dry floor) per hour, minimum 3 hours – up to 8 hours $ 100   150 
Events Center Rental (dry floor) per day                                                               $1,000 $       1,500 
Prime Ice Hour (September through March) 
(M-F  5 – 10 pm) (Sat-Sun 6 am – 10 pm) (Per hour) $  230  200 

Non-Prime Ice Hour (M-F 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM) (Per hour) $  180  155 
Paid Gate (Ice) Event Hourly Per Hour $  255  220 
Curling per hour  $  180 155 
Curling Stone Rental Monthly $ 100 
Public Skate Youth Ages 5-16 (4 & under 5 – Free)  Helmet Mandatory $ Free     4 
Public Skate Adult Ages 17-59 $ 5 
Public Skate Senior Ages 60+ $ 4 
Public Skate Family Pass (up to 4 people, each additional is $2 4) $ 15 
Public Skate Youth & Senior 10 punch card (Ages 5-16, 60+) $ 35 
Public Skate Adult 10 punch card (Ages 17-59)  $ 45 
Freestyle all ages $ 5 
Freestyle 5 punch card $ 25 
Skate Rental $ 3 
Skate Rental 10 punch card $ 25 
Skate Sharpen $ 7 
Skate Sharpen 10 punch card $ 60 
Shinny Hockey     (by age group, full gear required) $ 7 
Shinny Hockey 10 punch card    (by age group, full gear required) $ 60 
Stick Time         (Helmets & gloves required) $ 5 
Stick Time 10 punch card    (Helmets & gloves required)  $ 45 
Broomball      (Helmets & gloves required) $ 5 
Birthday Party (up to 15 skaters, $5 per additional skater) $   100  75 
School/Youth Organization Group Rate (per skater) $ 3 
Homeschool Hockey (per person) $ 8 

Page 140 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 10 

Homeschool Hockey 5 Punch Card $ 40 
Gym (daily) $ 5 
Gym (monthly) $ 25 

 

Neighborhood Park Development Fee Schedule 
Dwelling Type: 

Single Family (per dwelling unit) $ 200 
Multi-family (per dwelling unit) $ 150 
Mobile home (per dwelling unit) $ 150 

 
 

Palmer Public Library Fees 
Overdue items (per day, maximum $5 per item) $             .25 

 
               

Library community room rental (per hour with two hour minimum) $              25 
 Library community room rental (nonprofit – annually, entitles renter one use per month) $            100 

Copying fee (per page) $             .25 
 Replacement library cards $               3     

 Temporary card (4 months) $              10 
 Damaged Books 

TBD = To Be Determined  
Chewed edge corner (per corner) $                2 
Defaced pages (per page or replacement cost) $                2 
Torn pages in book that cannot be repaired (replacement cost) $            TBD 
Torn pages in book that can be repaired (per page) $ 2 
Repeated dog eared pages (per book) $ 2 
Chewed spine (top or bottom) $ 2 
Rebinding (replacement cost of item plus administrative fee) $            TBD  
Water/fluid damage (replacement cost plus administrative fee) $            TBD 
Mildew (replacement cost plus administrative fee) $            TBD 
Missing barcodes and spine labels on any library item (per item) $ 1 
Missing or damaged any library item jacket or case $ 2 
Lost or Damaged book Bag (replacement cost) $            TBD 
Items returned to wrong book drop $                 1 
Administrative reprocessing fee for lost or damaged books, DVD, audios, E-Readers $ 5 

Damaged Videos/DVDs/CDs: 
Damaged video, DVD, or CD (actual cost of repair plus administrative fee)  $           TBD 
Taping over a library video (replacement cost plus administrative fee)  $           TBD 
Broken or lost case  $ 5 

 Damaged Audio Tapes: 
Replacement (actual replacement cost)  $          TBD 

Equipment: 
E-Readers (actual replacement cost)  $           TBD    

 Equipment loaned out (per day) plus $100 refundable deposit  $ 5 
Damages to equipment (actual repair cost plus administrative fee)  $           TBD      

  

 

 

Page 141 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 11 

Permits 
Itinerant Vendor permit $              50 
Fence permits $      26 
Non-electrical sign permit (base fee plus $1.50 per sq. ft of sign area) $ 25 
Electrical sign permit (base fee plus $3 per sq. ft of sign area) $   50 
Loud equipment permit (valid for eight hours) $ 25 
Noise permit $ 25 
Water/Sewer Permits: 

Connection fee – water (new construction) $   400 
Connection fee – sewer (new construction) $ 400 
Disconnect/abandonment fee – water (back to main) $ 500 
Disconnect/abandonment fee – sewer (back to main) $ 500 

Encroachment Permit (before construction) $ 150 
Encroachment Permit (after construction) $ 250 

 
 

Public Information Requests 
Copies (per page) $    .25 
Copies of drawings, plans, books, etc. – actual cost $  
Audio recording (per meeting) $     15 
Public Safety audio recordings (per individual incident) $     20 
Police Video Recording (per individual incident) $     20 
Fire Report Copy $     20 
Charge for staff time above five hours for research/copying costs – 
actual personnel cost $        

 
 

Sales Tax 
Sales Tax Rate ($1,000 cap per item/service) 3% 

 
Sales Tax – late filing fee $ 25 

 
Sales Tax – delinquency tax interest rate – per year 15% 

 
Sales Tax – late payment penalty  

a penalty of 5% of the tax for each month late or fraction there of after the 
due date, until total penalty of 25% has been accrued. $ 

 
Sales Tax – collection upon sale – failure to collect $ 150 

 
Sales Tax – lien for tax, interest, and administration costs for penalties violation $ 150 

 
Sales Tax – PMC 3.16.260 – violation $ 150 

 
Contractor Certification of Exemption (for sales tax/per calendar year) $            250 

 
Owner/Builder Exemption (for sales tax/per calendar year) $ 30 

 
  

Page 142 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 12 

 

Special Assessments 
Special Assessment District billing fee $          3 
Special Assessment Interest Rate    3% 
Special Assessment Penalty Rate    3% 

 
 

Utilities 
Deposit – water and sewer (new active customers) $               100 
Utility late fees (percentage of balance owed)          10% 
Service call fee $                25 
Connection/Disconnect fee  $     25 
Door tag fee for non-payment of prior months’ utility bill $     15 
Transfer Tenant Utilities to Landlord for non-payment $     15 
Miscellaneous Repair Work hourly labor rate, contact the Department of Public 
Works for material costs $     50 

After Hours/Holiday/Weekend Inspection Fee (hourly) $               125 
Online Utility Payments Convenience Fee (transaction limit - $5,000) $              2.25 

Monthly Water Rates: 
0 to 5,000 gallons (plus meter charge plus sales tax) $            19.35 
Over 5,000 gallons (plus meter charge and $0.387 per 100 gallons plus sales tax) $            19.35 

Monthly Wastewater Rates: 
0 to 5,000 gallons (plus sales tax) $            38.95 
Over 5,000 gallons (plus $0.779 per 100 gallons plus sales tax) $            38.95 
Dump Station Fee (per month) $               180  

Monthly Meter Charges: 
5/8” meter (plus sales tax) $            14.95 
3/4” meter (plus sales tax) $            21.55 
1” meter (plus sales tax) $            38.10 
1 1/2” meter (plus sales tax) $            86.05 
2” meter (plus sales tax) $          152.55 
3” meter (plus sales tax) $          342.40 
4” meter (plus sales tax) $          610.10 
6” meter (plus sales tax)                                                                               $        1,372.70         
8” meter (plus sales tax)                                                                                $        2,440.30         
Hydrant Meter Connection (3” Bulk) 
(per month plus $.01 per gallon) (plus sales tax) 

$             $291 

Monthly Unmetered Wastewater Service Rates: 
Unmetered wastewater service flat rate, 4 inch service line (plus sales tax)  $            45.00 
Unmetered wastewater service flat rate, 6 inch service line (plus sales tax)  $            65.00

    
  

Page 143 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 13 

Summer Sewer Rates: 
Residential Rates: 

Because summer month water consumption for residential customers increases due to lawn and garden irrigation 
without a related increase in the use of sewer service, residential customers shall be charged for water actually 
used for each month of the year, but their sewer service charges for each of the billing cycles to include the months 
of May, June, July and August shall be set to the flat rate fee equivalent to 0 - 5000 gallons of waste water usage 
plus sales tax as outlined in the current fee schedule. 

Commercial Rates: 
Commercial users may install separate water meters to meter water used exclusively for irrigation purposes 
during the months of May, June, July and August, provided that the commercial customer pays for the purchase 
and installation of a separate water meter for that purpose, and such installation is approved by the utility. The 
customer shall pay fees for all water used, but the amount of water used for irrigation through an irrigation 
system water meter will be deducted from the commercial account’s total metered water consumption for the 
purpose of calculating monthly charges for sewer service. 

 
Treatment Rates: 

0 - 5000 gallons (plus sales tax) $         56.80 
Over 5001 gallons (plus $1.10 per 100 gallons) (plus sales tax) $         56.80 

Solid Waste Collection: 
Weekly refuse collection service (per month plus sales tax) 96 gallon can $             28 
Weekly refuse collection service (per month plus sales tax) 64 gallon can $             22 
Each additional container/bag 30 lb or less (per item) $ 5 
64 and 96 gallon Residential Container Replacement cost $ 100 
Oversize/special Item Collection/Disposal Fee $ 30 
Freon Removal Fee $ 25 
On-Call Dumpster (Residential Only) Monthly Fee $ 50 
On-Call Commercial Dumpster (other Dumpster Service Required) – Monthly Fee $             50 
Disconnected Utility Container Removal Fee $ 10 
Container Loss Recovery Fee $ 25 
Container Delivery/Removal fee $ 10 
Unscheduled Service Fee (different collection vehicle required) $ 40 
Three Cubic Yard Container - Residential - each dump (plus sales tax) $             30 
Four Cubic Yard Container - Residential - each dump (plus sales tax) $             38 
Eight Cubic Yard Container - Residential - each dump (plus sales tax) $             74 
Three Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for one dump per week) 
(plus sales tax) $           120 

Three Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for  two  dumps  per week) 
(plus sales tax) $           240 

Three Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for three dumps per week) 
(plus sales tax) $           360 

Four Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for one dump per week) (plus 
sales tax) $           152 

Four Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for two dumps per week) 
(plus sales tax) $           304 

Four Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for three dumps per week) 
(plus sales tax) $           456  

Eight Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for one dump per week) (plus 
sales tax) $           296 

Eight Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for two dumps per week) 
(plus sales tax) $           592 

Eight Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for three dumps per week) 
(plus sales tax) $           888 

Locking Dumpster (three or four yard includes delivery and pickup) $ 175 

Page 144 of 162



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 14 

 

Page 145 of 162



City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-032 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Resolution No. 21-032 

Subject:  A Resolution Appropriating the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds Award to Non-
Entitlement Units of Local Governments (NEUs) from the Alaska Department of Commerce, Community and 
Economic Development 

Agenda of: August 24, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: John Moosey, City Manager 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ $1,799,820.57 
 

This legislation (√): 
Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 
Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 
Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s): 
√ Not budgeted 56-00-00-3330 CSLFRFA Revenue; 56-01-50-6XXX

 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 146 of 162



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-032 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
1. Resolution No. 21-032 
2. State of Alaska Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development Coronavirus Local 

Fiscal Recovery Fund Agreement 
 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
On March 11, 2021, President Biden signed into law the $1.9 trillion relief bill commonly referred to as The 
American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA). Included in ARPA was the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery 
Funds to provide $350 billion in emergency funding for eligible state, local, territorial and Tribal governments.  For 
local governments under 50,000 in population, considered Non-Entitlement Units of Local Government (NEUs) 
funding will be passed down through the State based on the NEUs population in comparison to total population 
of NEUs in the State. 
 
On July 6, 2021, City Council approved Resolution No. 21-024 accepting the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal 
Recovery Funds Award for NEUs from the Alaska Department of Commerce, Community and Economic 
Development and authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute all documents required for issuing and 
managing the funds on behalf of City. 
 
On July 27, 2021, the City received the Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Agreement and appendixes A 
through E. The total award the City of Palmer is to receive is $1,799,820.57. The City will receive this award in 
two tranches. The first installment will be received upon receipt of the signed agreement and the second 
installment will be made one year from the first installment. 
 
Reporting requirements for the NEUs is annually to the Federal Treasury Department by October 31. 
 
The intent of these funds is to be used at the Wastewater Treatment Plant Facility Phase 2 engineering, 
constructing and installing secondary clarifiers. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Resolution No. 21-032 
 
 

Page 147 of 162



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-032 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Resolution No. 21-032 
 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Appropriating the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal 
Recovery Funds Award to Non-Entitlement Units of Local Government (NEUs) from the Alaska 
Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development in the amount of $1,799,820.57 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Palmer wishes to provide the above described funds for the community of Palmer;
 and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds can be used for water and sewer 

infrastructure; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Palmer Waste Water Treatment Plant Facility Phase 2 qualifies for these funds.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby appropriates the 

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds in the amount of $1,799,820.57 for use at the Palmer 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Facility Phase 2;  
 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this ____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 

________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

 
_____________________________ 
Nichole Degner, Interim City Clerk 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: City Manager Moosey 

Date: August 24, 2021 
Action:  

Vote:  
Yes: No: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 148 of 162



Page 149 of 162



Page 150 of 162



Page 151 of 162



Page 152 of 162



Page 153 of 162



Page 154 of 162



Page 155 of 162



Page 156 of 162



Page 157 of 162



Page 158 of 162



Page 159 of 162



Page 160 of 162



Page 161 of 162



Page 162 of 162


	Agenda
	Resolution 21-029 Avigation Easement Planning Study Phase II FAA Grant R1
	Resolution 21-031 Taxiway November FAA Grant
	AM 21-048 Professional Legal Services 2021
	AM 21-049 Country Garden Farms LLC
	AM 21-050 HDL Contract Amendment Taxiway N Design Project
	AM 21-051 HDL Contract Amendment Avigation Easement Planning Study Phase II R1
	2021-0727 Council Minutes Special
	2021-0727 Council Minutes
	Resolution 21-030 Changes to Fee Schedule MTA Events Center
	Resolution 21-032 Appropriating Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds Award



